
 

 

Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission (VCMMCC)  

dba Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP) 
 

Regular Meeting 

Monday, October 25, 2021, 2:00 p.m. 

Gold Coast Health Plan, 711 East Daily Drive, Community Room 

Camarillo, CA 93010 

Meeting held pursuant to AB 361  

Conference Call Number: 805-324-7279  
Conference ID Number: 902 304 710# 

Para interpretación al español, por favor llame al 805-322-1542 clave 1234 

Due to the declared state of emergency 
wherein social distancing measures have 
been imposed or recommended, this 
meeting is being held pursuant to AB 
361. 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
The public has the opportunity to address Ventura County Medi­Cal Managed Care 
Commission (VCMMCC) doing business as Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP) on the agenda. 
Persons wishing to address VCMMCC should complete and submit a Speaker Card. 
 
Persons wishing to address VCMMCC are limited to three (3) minutes unless the Chair of 
the Commission extends time for good cause shown. Comments regarding items not on the 
agenda must be within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission. 
 
Members of the public may call in, using the numbers above, or can submit public comments 
to the Committee via email by sending an email to ask@goldchp.org.   If members of the 
public want to speak on a particular agenda item, please identify the agenda item number.  
Public comments submitted by email should be under 300 words. 
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CONSENT 

1. Approval of Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Regular Meeting Minutes

of September 27, 2021.

Staff: Maddie Gutierrez, MMC, Clerk to the Commission

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the minutes of September 27, 2021.

2. Adopt a Resolution to Renew Resolution No. 2021-012, to Extend the Duration

of Authority Empowered in the CEO to issue Emergency Regulations and Take

Action Related to the Outbreak of Coronavirus (“COVID-19”)

Staff: Scott Campbell, General Counsel

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 2021-013 to extend the duration of 
authority empowered in the CEO through December 16, 2021. 

3. Approval of Quality Improvement Committee Member

Staff: Nancy Wharfield, M.D., Chief Medical Officer

RECOMMENDATION: Approve Rachel Stern, M.D., as an active member of the 
Quality Improvement Committee. 

UPDATES 

4. HSP MediTrac Update

Staff: Anna Sproule, Sr. Director of Operations

RECOMMENDATION: Receive and file the update. 

FORMAL ACTION 

5. AB 361, Brown Act Virtual Meetings

Staff: Scott Campbell, General Counsel

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the following findings be made:  That
the Commission has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of the emergency
and finds that the state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of
Commission members to meet safely in person and that State and local officials
continue to impose or recommend measures to promote social distancing.
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6. Quality Improvement Committee 2021 Third Quarter Report

Staff:  Nancy Wharfield, M.D., Chief Medical Officer
Kim Timmerman, Director of Quality Improvement 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the 2020 QI Program Evaluation.  Receive and file 
the complete report as presented. 

7. Moss Adams FY 20-21 Audited Financial Statements

Staff: Kashina Bishop, Chief Financial Officer
Moss Adams Representatives:  Stelian Damu & Kimberly Sokoloff

RECOMMENDATION: Staff requests that the Commission approve the FY 20-
21 audited financial statements. 

8. September 2021 Financials

Staff: Kashina Bishop, Chief Financial Officer

RECOMMENDATION: Staff requests that the Commission approve the 
September 2021 financial package. 

REPORTS 

9. Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Report

Staff: Margaret Tatar, Chief Executive Officer

RECOMMENDATION: Receive and file the report. 

10. Chief Medical Officer (CMO) Report

Staff: Nancy Wharfield, M.D., Chief Medical Officer

RECOMMENDATION: Receive and file the report. 

11. Chief Diversity Officer (CDO) Report

Staff: Ted Bagley, Chief Diversity Officer

RECOMMENDATION: Receive and file the report. 
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12. Executive Director of Human Resources (H.R.) Report

Staff: Michael Murguia, Executive Director of Human Resources

RECOMMENDATION: Receive and file the report.

CLOSED SESSION 

13. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—ANTICIPATED LITIGATION

Initiation of litigation pursuant to paragraph (4) of subdivision (d) of Section
54956.9:  One case.

ADJOURNMENT 

Date and location of the next meeting to be determined at the October 25, 2021 meeting. 

Administrative Reports relating to this agenda are available at 711 East Daily Drive, Suite #106, Camarillo, 
California, during normal business hours and on http://goldcoasthealthplan.org. Materials related to an agenda 
item submitted to the Commission after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public review during 
normal business hours at the office of the Clerk of the Commission. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need assistance to participate in this meeting, please 
contact (805) 437-5512. Notification for accommodation must be made by the Monday prior to the meeting by 3 
p.m. to enable the Clerk of the Commission to make reasonable arrangements for accessibility to this meeting.
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AGENDA ITEM NO. 1 

TO: Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission 

FROM: Maddie Gutierrez, MMC, Clerk of the Board 

DATE:  October 25, 2021 

SUBJECT: Meeting Minutes of September 27, 2021 Regular Commission Meeting  

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve the minutes. 

ATTACHMENT: 

Copy of Minutes for the September 27, 2021 Regular Commission Meeting. 
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Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission 
(VCMMCC) 

dba Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP) 
September 27, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes 

CALL TO ORDER 

Commission Chair Dee Pupa called the meeting to order via teleconference at 2:05 pm.  The 
Clerks were in the Community Room located at Gold Coast Health Plan, 711 East Daily 
Drive, Camarillo, California. 

ROLL CALL 

Present: Commissioners Theresa Cho, M.D., Laura Espinosa, Dr. Sevet Johnson, Dee 
Pupa, Supervisor Carmen Ramirez, Jennifer Swenson, and Scott Underwood, 
M.D.

Absent: Commissioners Antonio Alatorre, Gagan Pawar, M.D., and Andrew Lane. 

Commissioner Shawn Atin was not present at roll call. 

Attending the meeting for GCHP were Nancy Wharfield, MD., Chief Medical Officer, Kashina 
Bishop, Chief Financial Officer, Michael Murguia Executive Director of Human Resources, 
Scott Campbell, General Counsel, Cathy Salenko, Health Care General Counsel, Marlen 
Torres, Executive Director of Strategy and External Affairs, Robert Franco, Ted Bagley, Chief 
Diversity Officer, and Nick Liguori, Chief Operations Officer 

Additional staff participating on the call:  Anna Sproule, Vicki Wrighster, Dr. Anne Freese, 
Kim Timmerman, Nicole Kanter, Stacy Luney, Jamie Louwrens, Carolyn Harris, Leslie Cole, 
Kris Schmidt, Lucy Marrero, Susana Enriquez, Paula Cabral, and Sandi Walker.    

PUBLIC COMMENT 

None. 
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CONSENT 

1. Approval of Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Regular Meeting Minutes
of July 26, 2021.

Staff: Maddie Gutierrez, MMC, Clerk to the Commission.

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the regular meeting minutes of August 23, 2021. 

2. Adopt a Resolution to Renew Resolution No. 2021-011, to Extend the Duration
of Authority Empowered in the CEO to issue Emergency Regulations and Take
Action Related to the Outbreak of Coronavirus (“COVID-19”)

Staff: Scott Campbell General Counsel

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 2021-012 to extend the duration of
authority empowered in the CEO through October 25, 2021.

Commission Chair, Dee Pupa asked for a motion on Consent items 1 and 2. 

Commissioner Laura Espinosa motioned to approve Consent Items 1, and 2.   Commissioner 
Swenson seconded.   

AYES: Commissioners Theresa Cho, M.D., Laura Espinosa, Dr. Sevet Johnson, Dee 
Pupa, Supervisor Carmen Ramirez, Jennifer Swenson and Scott Underwood, 
M.D.

NOES: None. 

ABSENT: Commissioners Antonio Alatorre, Shawn Atin, Gagan Pawar, M.D, and Andrew 
Lane. 

Commissioner Pupa declared the motion carried. 

General Counsel, Scott Campbell, stated the Governor has signed a bill to allow remote 
meetings without posting at each location.  We will be able to continue for an indefinite 
period.  

Supervisor Ramirez asked if the Commission would need vote to meet remotely every thirty 
(30) days.   Mr. Campbell stated that is correct.
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UPDATES 

3. Return to Office Planning Update

Staff: Michael Murguia, Executive Director of Human Resources

RECOMMENDATION: Receive and file the update.

Executive Director of Human Resources, Michael Murguia presented an update in the
return-to-work plan.  He stated GCHP is currently working at an optimal level and there
are no impediments to members.  Productivity and performance are monitored.  The
original return to the office date was January 2022, but it has now been pushed back
to April due to the Delta variant.   There are still many unknowns and GCHP feels
better leaving employees remote until April1, 2022.

Commissioner Espinosa asked if a member shows up in person, is there someone
there to meet them. She asked if it was an employee or a security guard.   Mr. Murguia
stated we do not have security on the premises.  We have Facilities staff who is
present everyday of the week during business hours.  If the members need someone
from Member Services, that department is contacted, and they take over to assist.

Commissioner Cho asked for more detail on production and performance. Mr. Murguia
stated member calls are answered and deadlines are met.  Mr. Murguia requests
reports of who is online and so far, there have been no issues.  Dr. Wharfield, Chief
Medical Officer, stated GCHP has been doing this for a long time. Her department is
a production department and information must be submitted in a timely manner.

Mr. Murguia stated Marlen Torres, Executive Director of Strategy & External Affairs is
part of the Executive Staff and is on the Return to Office Committee. Ms. Torres did
an evaluation and noted more flexibility on remote work.  Employees want more
flexibility per the survey taken by staff.  Out of State employees work remotely 100%.
He noted that some employees are now asking to keep their job but want to move out
of state.

Mr. Murguia noted that with these changes, there might be changes in the building
leases – if more employees work remotely, we won’t need as much office space.

4. HSP MediTrac Go-Live Update

Staff: Anna Sproule, Sr. Director of Operations

RECOMMENDATION: Receive and file the update. 
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Anna Sproule, Sr. Director of Operations gave a verbal update on the HSP/Conduent 
project.  She noted we have contracted with an agency to provide temporary 
resources in claims inventory.   

Provider network/Health Services/ Operations is testing.  Defects in the testing 
process were found.  There has been a date change due to these defects and 
correction is needed.    The call center also now has additional resources and the call 
waiting period is down to 1-2 minutes. 

Commissioner Pupa asked if more staff has been brought on.  Ms. Sproule responded 
currently there are 40 additional staff and 15 more will start the next week (Monday).  

Supervisor Ramirez asked of this staff is paid by Conduent.  Ms. Sproule responded 
that GCHP pays staff, and the dollar amounts are deducted from the Conduent 
invoice.  The salary is at a competitive rate. 

Commission Chair, Dee Pupa asked for a motion on Update items 3 and 4. 

Commissioner Theresa Cho, M.D. motioned to approve Update Items 3 and 4.   Supervisor 
Carmen Ramirez seconded.   

AYES: Commissioners Theresa Cho, M.D., Laura Espinosa, Dr. Sevet Johnson, Dee 
Pupa, Supervisor Carmen Ramirez, Jennifer Swenson and Scott Underwood, 
M.D.

NOES: None. 

ABSENT: Commissioners Shawn Atin, Antonio Alatorre, Gagan Pawar, M.D, and Andrew 
Lane. 

Commissioner Pupa declared the motion carried. 

Commissioner Shawn Atin joined the meeting at 2:31 p.m. 

FORMAL ACTION 

5. August 2021 Financials

Staff: Kashina Bishop, Chief Financial Officer

RECOMMENDATION: Staff requests that the Commission approve the August 
2021 financial package. 

Page 9 of 189 Return to Agenda



Chief Financial Officer, Kashina Bishop stated the August net gain is $3.8 million. 
Fiscal year to date net gain is now $10.1 million and TNE is at 302%.  Medical Loss 
Ration is 88.5% and Administrative Rationis 5.4%.  CFO Bishop stated she expects 
to reach 400% of the TNE by end of 2022. The Solvency Action Plan (SAP) will 
continue until this goal is reached.  She noted net premium revenue is $165.8 million 
and over budget by $214,980. 

CFO Bishop stated membership rates have leveled off.  Medical Expense is under 
budget by 4%.  She noted there are still outstanding issues that Conduent is working 
on.  Monthly claims payment shave increased and payments to providers are 
improving.  

CFO Bishop noted long term care expenses have decreased, outpatient expenses are 
holding steady as is ER expenses.  Mental & Behavioral health has increased with the 
pandemic. 

Commissioner Cho stated she noted the drop in outpatient expense in April was 
significant.  CFO Bishop stated there was a billing dispute with a provider and now the 
contract has been re-negotiated, so it is now holding steady.   Commissioner Cho 
asked how it relates to April.  CFO Bishop stated we are seeing increases in some 
categories and there was a contractual change.  

Chief Medical Officer, Nance Wharfield, M.D. stated there was a 42% decrease in 
Emergency Department use. Supervisor Ramirez stated people didn’t want to go to 
the ER because they were afraid of catching COVID, but needed services were put 
off – she asked if we would see an increase at some point.  CMO Wharfield responded 
yes. 

Commission Pupa asked if the situation with Conduent has delayed the Moss Adams 
audit.  CFO Bishop stated we still anticipate audit financials next month.  

Commission Chair, Dee Pupa asked for a motion on Formal Action item 5 – August 
Financials.  

Commissioner Jennifer Swenson. motioned to approve Formal Action item 5 – August 
Financials.   Supervisor Carmen Ramirez seconded.   

AYES: Commissioners Shawn Atin, Theresa Cho, M.D., Laura Espinosa, Dr. Sevet 
Johnson, Dee Pupa, Supervisor Carmen Ramirez, Jennifer Swenson and Scott 
Underwood, M.D.  

NOES: None. 
ABSENT: Commissioners Antonio Alatorre, Gagan Pawar, M.D, and Andrew Lane. 
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Commissioner Pupa declared the motion carried. 

REPORTS 

6. Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Report

Staff: Margaret Tatar, Chief Executive Officer

RECOMMENDATION: Receive and file the report.

Chief Executive Officer Margaret Tatar is not present.  Chief Financial Officer Kashina
Bishop presented highlights from the CEO Report.  DHCS issued a letter to improve
vaccine numbers.  GCHP submitted a plan to give vaccines – we will be working with
the County, and do radio public service announcements, she noted members will
receive incentives for vaccines.  GCHP will be getting $4.7 million in incentives.  CFO
Bishop stated the Commission could review legislative updates and sponsorships.
She noted there were six (6) community events and GCHP participated.

Commissioner Pupa asked if there was a way to capture how many people
participated.  Marlen Torres, Executive Director of Strategy & External Affairs stated
her staff track who they talk to – both GCHP members and just community.  She stated
she will add a level of more detailed information and include who receives gift cards.

Commissioner Cho asked if incentives are available to clinics who vaccinate GCHP
members.  Ms. Torres stated we are working with clinics and strategizing with them.

7. Chief Medical Officer (CMO) Report

Staff: Nancy Wharfield, M.D., Chief Medical Officer

RECOMMENDATION: Receive and file the report.

Nancy Wharfield, M.D., Chief Medical Officer reviewed her report.  She stated COVID
level has dropped, today hospital admits are down by 36%. She noted average length
of stay in hospital has been affected by COVID, but admissions have dropped.  ER
utilization has dropped by 50%.  She also reviewed the top 10 diagnosis.

Dr. Anne Freese, Director of Pharmacy, stated Medi-Cal Rx is back on with an
implementation date of January 1, 2022 and we have received State information.
There will be no 90-day notice to members.  DHCS will send a 60-day letter in
November/December of 2021 and GCHP will start an outreach campaign on radio and
in print.  In December a 30-day letter will be sent to GCHP members and new ID cards
will be issued in January 2022.
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Dr. Freese reviewed pharmacy trends and noted opioid graphs will be updated at the 
next commission meeting. 

Commissioner Pupa as if implementation of Medi-Cal Rx will affect CAP rate.  CFO 
Bishop responded yes. The carve-out will help improve TNE. 

8. Chief Diversity Officer (CDO) Report

Staff: Ted Bagley, Chief Diversity Officer

RECOMMENDATION: Receive and file the report.

Chief Diversity Officer, Ted Bagley, stated he is continuing his community relations
involvement with the County and Ms. Marlen Torres.  He noted the Diversity, Equity &
Inclusion Team has been asked to review values within the Plan.   CDO Bagley stated
there is a down trend on staff complaints but we should consider re-developing the
Personnel Committee to avoid burn out. Employees are doing a great job, but we do
not want to lose staff due to burnout.

Commissioner Espinosa stated she appreciated CDO Bagley’s work and efforts.
GCHP serves a low-income community, and we need to be sensitive to all.

CDO Bagley stated he hopes COVID will ease in 2022, as we need to train employees
more.  Commissioner Espinosa stated the Commission needs to be included in the
trainings.  CDO Bagley stated the trainings stopped due to COVDI but he has
continued with Lunch & Learns.

Supervisor Ramirez noted we all need to be conscious of how we face the public.
People don’t think about what some symbols mean.  She noted that Oxnard School
District has some schools named after racist people, but the schools are now
renaming their sites, which is a great and positive trend.

9. Executive Director of Human Resources (H.R.) Report

Staff: Michael Murguia, Executive Director of Human Resources

RECOMMENDATION: Receive and file the report.

Michael Murguia, Executive Director of Human Resources stated there have been
three (3) resignations in the last 30 days.  Helen Miller, Sr. Director of IT has resigned.
A new vacancy in Human Resources has been filled and we are on-boarding the new
Chief Operating Officer.
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HR is continuing to evaluate benefits packages and looking for enhancements. Open 
enrollment will be in November and it will be virtual. 

Commissioner Espinosa asked how the onboarding for the COO is going.  Mr. Murguia 
stated he is onboard and on site.   Mr. Nick Liguori, Chief Operating Officer, stated he 
has been emersed in work and his calendar is filling up. 

Commission Chair, Dee Pupa asked for a motion on Report items 6 through 9. 

Commissioner Shawn Atin motioned to approve Report Items 6 through 9.   Commissioner 
Sevet Johnson seconded.   

AYES: Commissioners Shawn Atin, Theresa Cho, M.D., Laura Espinosa, Dr. Sevet 
Johnson, Dee Pupa, Supervisor Carmen Ramirez, Jennifer Swenson and Scott 
Underwood, M.D.  

NOES: None. 

ABSENT: Commissioners Antonio Alatorre, Gagan Pawar, M.D, and Andrew Lane. 

Commissioner Pupa declared the motion carried. 

Closed Session began at 3:23 p.m. 

CLOSED SESSION 

10. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—ANTICIPATED LITIGATION
Initiation of litigation pursuant to paragraph (4) of subdivision (d) of Section
54956.9:  One case.

11. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT
Title: Chief Executive Officer

ADJOURNMENT 

General Counsel, Scott Campbell stated there was no reportable action in Closed Session.  
The meeting was adjourned at 5:13 p.m. 

Approved: 

________________________________________ 
Maddie Gutierrez, MMC 
Clerk to the Commission 
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AGENDA ITEM NO. 2 

TO: Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission 

FROM: Scott Campbell, General Counsel 

DATE: October 25, 2021 

SUBJECT: Adopt a Resolution to Renew Resolution No. 2021-012, to Extend the Duration of 
Authority Empowered in the CEO to issue Emergency Regulations and Take 
Action Related to the Outbreak of Coronavirus (“COVID-19”) 

SUMMARY: 

Adopt Resolution No. 2021-013-to: 

1. Extend the duration of authority granted to the CEO to issue emergency regulations and
take action related to the outbreak of COVID-19.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

COVID-19, which originated in Wuhan City, Hubei Provence, China in December, 2019, has 
resulted in an outbreak of respiratory illness causing symptoms of fever, coughing, and 
shortness of breath. Reported cases of COVID-19 have ranged from very mild to severe, 
including illness resulting in death. To combat the spread of the disease Governor Newsom 
declared a State of Emergency on March 4, 2020. The State of Emergency adopted pursuant to 
the California Emergency Services Act, put into place additional resources and made directives 
meant to supplement local action in dealing with the crisis. 

In the short period of time following the Governor’s proclamation, COVID-19 spread rapidly 
through California necessitating more stringent action. On March 19, 2020, Governor Newsom 
issued Executive Order N-33-20 (commonly known as “Safer at Home”) ordering all residents 
to stay at home to slow the spread of COVID-19, except as needed to maintain continuity of 
operation of the federal critical infrastructure sectors. The following day, the Ventura County 
Health Officer issued a County-wide “Stay Well at Home”, order, requiring all County residents 
to stay in their places of residence subject to certain exemptions set forth in the order. 

Prompted by the increase of reported cases and deaths associated with COVID-19, the 
Commission adopted Resolution No. 2020-001 declaring a local emergency and empowering 
the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) with the authority to issue emergency rules and regulations 
to protect the health of Plan's members, staff and providers. Specifically, section (2) of 
Resolution No. 2020-001 describes the emergency powers delegated to the CEO which include, 

Page 14 of 189 Return to Agenda



but are not limited to: entering into agreements on behalf of the Plan, making and implementing 
personnel or other decisions, to take all actions necessary to obtain Federal and State 
emergency assistance, and implement preventive measures to preserve Plan activities and 
protect the health of Plan's members, staff and providers. 

Normally under Government Code Section 8630, the Commission must review the need for 
continuing the local emergency once every sixty (60) days until the local governing body 
terminates the local emergency. However, under Governor Newsom’s March 4, 2020, State of 
Emergency proclamation, that 60 day time period in section 8630 is waived for the duration of 
the statewide emergency. Pursuant to Resolution No. 2020-001, the Plan’s Local Emergency 
proclamation and emergency authority vested in the CEO expired on April 27, 2020. 

On April 27, 2020, the Commission adopted Resolution No. 2020-002 to renew Resolution No. 
2020-001 to: (1) reiterate and renew the Plan’s declaration of a Local Emergency through the 
duration of the Governor’s State of Emergency proclamation or when the Commission terminates 
its declaration of Local Emergency, whichever occurs last; and (2) to extend the duration of 
authority empowered in the CEO to issue emergency regulations and take action. Resolution 
No. 2020-002 expired on May 18, 2020. 

On May 18, 2020, the Commission adopted Resolution No. 2020-003 to renew and reiterate the 
enumerated powers granted to the CEO in Resolution No. 2020-002 above, and to: (1) authorize 
the CEO, with the advice counsel, to implement a staggered return to work program for Plan 
personnel; and (2) extend the duration of authority empowered in the CEO to issue emergency 
regulations and take action. Resolution No. 2020-003 expired on June 22, 2020.  

Since the adoption of Resolution No. 2020-003, the Commission has renewed and reiterated the 
emergency powers granted to the CEO on July 27th, August 24th, September 28th, October 
26th, January 25th, February 22nd, March 22nd, April 26th, June 28th, July 26th, and more 
recently by adopting Resolution No. 2021-011 on August 23, 2021. Resolution No. 2021-011 
expires today, September 27, 2021. 

COVID-19 continues to present an imminent threat to the health and safety of Plan personnel. 
Although vaccines are now widely available, many people in the State and County are still not 
fully vaccinated and remain susceptible to infection. As of October 11, 2021, 71.5% of the state’s 
eligible population are fully vaccinated. This is a 1.9% increase from last month. Although, 
vaccination rates are increasing, the disease can still spread rapidly through person-to-person 
contact and those in close proximity. Further, more contagious variants of the disease are now 
present in the State and County, the most predominant of which is the Delta variant.  

While the State’s economy has reopened and an increasing amount of events that gather large 
groups of people have resumed, the COVID-19 pandemic continues to loom. State and local 
officials, including the public health community are continuing to enforce rules and regulations 
and explore ways to stymie the spread of the disease. An example of this is the FDA’s 
authorization of booster shots and the growing number of public agencies from all levels of 
government and private businesses that are implementing COVID-19 vaccination mandates.   

VCPH is strongly urging all County residents that are eligible but have not yet been fully 
vaccinated to get vaccinated as soon as possible. The County is aligned with the California 
Department of Public Health and the Center for Disease Control and Prevention guidance on 
mask wearing, which recommends that everyone regardless of vaccination status wear masks 
indoors, and that requires those that are not fully vaccinated to mask indoors. The County Public 
Health Officer recently issued a health officer order, extending its mask regulations through at 
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Additionally, Cal/OSHA released revised rules for workplaces, which became effective 
immediately pursuant to Executive Order N-09-21 issued by Governor Newsom on June 17, 
2021. Among other updates, Cal/OSHA’s revisions align with the latest guidance from CDPH 
based on guidelines issued by the CDC. The Plan’s CEO and Human Resources Director are 
evaluating how this will impact the Plan’s back to work plans and will provide an update to the 
Commission. 

This resolution will continue to empower the CEO with the authority to issue orders and 
regulations necessary to prevent the further spread of the disease and protect the health and 
safety of Plan members and staff through December 16, 2021 the date of its Strategic Planning 
meeting as the November regularly scheduled meeting may be cancelled. The intent of this 
resolution is to balance the ability to continue the safe and efficient operations of the Plan during 
the global health pandemic. As State and County health orders evolve, the Plan’s response 
should also evolve. Measures adopted to reduce the spread of COVID-19 amongst Commission 
staff may be rescinded when they are no longer needed in response to the pandemic. Pursuant 
to Resolution No. 2020-002, the Plan’s Local Emergency proclamation shall remain effective 
through the duration of the Governor’s State of Emergency proclamation or when the 
Commission terminates its declaration of Local Emergency, whichever occurs last. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2021-013 to extend the duration of authority empowered in the CEO
through December 16, 2021.

ATTACHMENT: 

1. Resolution No. 2021-013.
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RESOLUTION NO.2021-013 

A RESOLUTION OF THE VENTURA COUNTY MEDICAL 
MANAGED CARE COMMISSION, DOING BUSINESS AS THE 
GOLD COAST HEALTH PLAN (“PLAN”), TO RENEW AND 
RESTATE RESOLUTION NO. 2021-012 TO EXTEND THE 
DURATION OF AUTHORITY EMPOWERED IN THE CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER ("CEO") RELATED TO THE OUTBREAK 
OF CORONAVIRUS ("COVID-19")  

WHEREAS, all recitals in the Commission’s Resolution Nos. 2020-001, 2020-002 2020-03, 
2020-004, 2020-005, 2020-006, 2020-007, 2021-001, 2021-002, 2021-003, 2021-004, 2021-005, 
2021-009, 2021-010, 2021-011 and 2021-12 remain in effect and are incorporated herein by 
reference; and 

WHEREAS, a severe acute respiratory illness caused by a novel (new) coronavirus, known 
as COVID-19, has spread globally and rapidly, resulting in severe illness and death around the 
world. The World Health Organization has described COVID-19 as a global pandemic; and 

WHEREAS, on March 19, 2020, the Commission adopted Resolution No. 2020-001, 
proclaiming a local emergency pursuant to Government Code Sections 8630 and 8634, and 
empowered the CEO with the authority to issue rules and regulations to preserve Plan activities, 
protect the health and safety of its members staff and providers and prevent the further spread of 
COVID-19; and 

WHEREAS, on April 27, 2020, the Commission adopted Resolution No. 2020-002 to: (1) 
renew and reiterate the declaration of a local emergency related to the outbreak of COVID-19 
declared in Resolution No. 2020-001 to remain effective through the duration of the Governor’s 
State of Emergency proclamation or when the Commission terminates its declaration of Local 
Emergency, whichever occurs last; and (2) to extend the duration of authority empowered in the 
CEO through Resolution No. 2020-001 to May 18, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, on May 18, 2020, the Commission adopted Resolution No. 2020-003 to renew 
the authority first granted to the CEO in Resolution No. 2020-001 to June 22, 2020 and to 
authorize the CEO, with the advice counsel, to implement a staggered return to work program for 
Plan personnel; and  

WHEREAS, since the adoption of Resolution No. 2020-003, the Commission has renewed 
and reiterated the emergency powers granted to the CEO on July 27th, August 24th, September 
28th, October 26th, January 25th, February 22nd March 22nd, April 26th, May 24th June 28th, 
July 26th, August 23rd, and more recently on September 27, 2021, by adopting Resolution No. 
2021-012. Resolution No. 2021-012 expires today, October 25, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, unless renewed by the Commission, the delegation of authority empowered in 
the CEO, pursuant to Resolution No. 2021-012 shall expire today, October 25, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, this resolution will continue to empower the CEO with the authority to issue 
orders and regulations necessary to prevent the further spread of the disease and protect the 
health and safety of Plan members and staff through December 16, 2021, its Strategic Planning 
meeting as the November meeting may be cancelled.; and 

WHEREAS, although vaccines are now widely available, many people in the State and 
County are still not fully vaccinated and remain susceptible to infection. Further, more contagious 
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variants of the disease are now present in the State and County, the most predominant of which 
is the Delta variant; and 

WHEREAS, the imminent and proximate threat of introduction of COVID-19 in Commission 
staff workplaces continues to threaten the safety and health of Commission personnel; and 

WHEREAS, under Article VIII of the Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission 
aka Gold Coast Health Plan's (the “Plan's”) bylaws, the CEO is responsible for coordinating day 
to day activities of the Ventura County Organized Health System, including implementing and 
enforcing all policies and procedures and assure compliance with all applicable federal and state 
laws, rules and regulations; and 

WHEREAS, California Welfare and Institutions Code section 14087.53(b) provides that all 
rights, powers, duties, privileges, and immunities of the County of Ventura are vested in the Plan's 
Commission; and 

WHEREAS, California Government Code section 8630 permits the Plan's Commissioners, 
acting with the County of Ventura's powers, to declare the existence of a local emergency to 
protect and preserve the public welfare of Plan's members, staff and providers when they are 
affected or likely to be affected by a public calamity; and 

WHEREAS, the Plan is a public entity pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code section 
14087.54 and as such, the Plan may empower the CEO with the authority under sections 8630 
and 8634 to issue rules and regulations to prevent the spread of COVID-19 and preserve Plan 
activities and protect the health and safety of its members, staff and providers; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care 
Commission as follows: 

Section 1. Pursuant to California Government Code sections 8630 and 8634, the 
Commission adopted Resolution No. 2020-001 finding a local emergency exists caused by 
conditions or threatened conditions of COVID-19, which constitutes extreme peril to the health 
and safety of Plan's members, staff and providers. 

Section 2. Resolution No. 2020-001 also empowered the CEO with the authority to 
furnish information, to promulgate orders and regulations necessary to provide for the protection 
of life and property pursuant to California Government Code sections 8630 and 8634, to enter 
into agreements, make and implement personnel or other decisions and to take all actions 
necessary to obtain Federal and State emergency assistance and to implement preventive 
measures and other actions necessary to preserve Plan activities and protect the health of Plan's 
members, staff and providers, including but not limited to the following: 

A. Arrange alternate "telework" accommodations to allow Plan staff to work from home
or remotely, as deemed necessary by the CEO, to limit the transfer of the disease.

B. Help alleviate hardship suffered by Plan staff related to emergency conditions
associated with the continued spread of the disease such as acting on near-term
policies relating to sick leave for Plan staff most vulnerable to a severe case of
COVID-19.

C. Address and implement expectations issued by the California Department of Health
Care Services ("DHCS") and the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services ("CMS")
regarding new obligations to combat the pandemic.
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D. Coordinate with Plan staff to realign job duties, priorities, and new or revised
obligations issued by DHCS and CMS.

E. Take such action as reasonable and necessary under the circumstances to ensure
the continued provision of services to members while prioritizing the Plan's
obligations pursuant to the agreement between DHCS and the Plan ("Medi-Cal
Agreement").

F. Enter in to such agreements on behalf of the Plan as necessary or desirable, with
advice of legal counsel, to carry out all actions authorized by the Commission in the
Resolution.

G. Authorize the CEO to implement and take such action on behalf of the Plan as the
CEO may determine to be necessary or desirable, with advice of legal counsel, to
carry out all actions authorized by the Commission in this Resolution.

Section 3. In Resolution 2020-001, the Commission further ordered that: 

A. The Commission approves and ratifies the actions of the CEO and the Plan’s
staff heretofore taken which are in conformity with the intent and purposes of these
resolutions.

B. Resolution No. 2020-001 expired on April 27, 2020.

Section 4. On April 27, 2020, the Commission adopted Resolution No. 2020-002 to: 

A. Renew and reiterate the declaration of a local emergency related to the outbreak
of COVID-19 to remain effective through the duration of the Governors’ State of
Emergency proclamation or when the Commission terminates its declaration of
Local Emergency, whichever occurs last; and

B. To extend the duration of authority empowered in the CEO to issue emergency
regulations related to the COVID-19 outbreak to May 18, 2020.

Section 5. The Commission adopted Resolution No. 2020-003 on May 18, 2020, to 
renew and reiterate the authority granted to the CEO approved in Resolution No. 2020-002 and 
to adopt the following additional emergency measures: 

A. In addition to the authority granted to the CEO in Section 2, to authorize the
CEO, with the advice counsel, to implement a staggered return to work program for
Plan personnel; and

B. Extend the authority granted to the CEO through June 22, 2020.

Section 6. Since the adoption of Resolution No. 2020-003, the Commission has 
renewed and reiterated the emergency powers granted to the CEO on July 27th, August 24th, 
September 28th, October 26th, January 25th, February 22nd, March 22nd, April 26th, May 24th 
June 28th, July 26th, August 23rd and more recently on September 27, 2021, by adopting 
Resolution No. 2021-012. Resolution No. 2021-012 expires today, October 25, 2021. 

Section 7. The Commission now seeks to renew and reiterate the authority granted to 
the CEO approved in Resolution No. 2021-012 through December 16, 2021. 
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Section 8. Unless renewed by the Commission, the delegation of authority empowered 
in the CEO, pursuant to this Resolution shall expire on December 16, 2021. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care 
Commission at a regular meeting on the 25th day of October 2021, by the following vote: 

AYE: 

NAY: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

______________________________ 

Chair: 

Attest: 

Clerk of the Commission 
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AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 

TO: Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission 

FROM: Nancy Wharfield, M.D., Chief Medical Officer 

DATE:  October 25, 2021 

SUBJECT:   Approval of Quality Improvement Committee Member 

SUMMARY: 

The Quality Improvement Committee Charter specifies that membership will include at least 
one practicing physician in the community.   

Rachel Stern, M.D. has been nominated to replace Theresa Cho, M.D., as an active member of 
the Quality Improvement Committee (“QIC”).  Dr. Stern is the Chief Medical Quality Officer of 
Ambulatory Care at Ventura County Healthcare Agency. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Rachel Stern, M.D., as an active member of the Quality Improvement Committee. 
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AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 

TO: Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission 

FROM: Anna Sproule, Sr. Director of Operations 

DATE:  October 25, 2021 

SUBJECT:  HSP / MediTrac Go-Live Update 

VERBAL PRESENTATION 
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AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 

TO: Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission 

CC: Margaret Tatar. Chief Executive Officer 

FROM: Scott Campbell, General Counsel 

DATE: October 25, 2021 

SUBJECT: Findings to Hold Remote Teleconference/Virtual Commission 
Meetings Pursuant to Assembly Bill 361 

SUMMARY/RECOMMENDATION: 

That if the Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission (“Commission”) dba as 
Gold Coast Health Plan (“Plan”) desires to continue to meet virtually, without posting the 
agenda at each location from where Commissioner attends, that the Commission make 
findings authorizing remote teleconference/virtual meetings of the Commission and its 
legislative bodies pursuant to Assembly Bill 361 based on the ongoing COVID-19 
pandemic. Specifically, that the Commission determine that the COVID-19 state of 
emergency proclaimed by the Governor still exists and has been considered by the 
Commission in deciding to have teleconference meetings not noticed and held at each 
teleconference location and one of the two following secondary findings be made: that 
state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social 
distancing in connection with COVID-19, or, that as result of the COVID-19 emergency, 
meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees. It is 
recommended that both secondary findings be made. Because these findings must be 
made every thirty (30) days, the Commission would have to schedule additional meetings 
for the purpose of making the findings going forward if it desires to meet without the 
requirement of posting the agenda at each location and allowing members of the public 
to attend from any of the posted locations.  

Additionally, under AB 361, the Commission is required to provide members of the public 
the option of calling in or attending via the internet, even if all Commission members 
attend the meeting in person or telecommute. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

The Brown Act generally allows for teleconference or virtual meetings, provided that the 
physical locations of the legislative body’s members joining by teleconference are posted 
on the agenda, that those locations are open to the public and that a quorum of the 
members is located within its jurisdiction. Newly enacted AB 361 provides an exception to 
these procedures in order to allow for fully virtual meetings during proclaimed 
emergencies, including the COVID-19 pandemic without posting the agenda at each 
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teleconference location and allowing the public access to each location, even if the public 
is unvaccinated.   

Since March of 2020 and the issuance of Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20, 
which suspended portions of the Brown Act relating to teleconferencing, the Commission 
and other Plan legislative bodies have had virtual meetings without having to post the 
location of the legislative body members attending virtually. Most public agencies have 
been holding public meetings using virtual platforms since this time. In June of 2021, 
Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-08-21, which provided that the exceptions 
contained in EO N-29-20 would sunset on September 30, 2021. Legislative bodies under 
the Brown Act include the Executive Finance Committee and other committees created by 
Commission action. 

On September 10, 2021, the Legislature adopted AB 361, which allows public agencies to 
hold fully virtual meetings under certain circumstances without the posting of the agenda 
from each location a legislative body member is attending. Governor Newsom signed the 
bill into law on September 16, 2021. Because it contained an urgency provision, it took 
immediate effect.  

Specific Findings Required under AB 361 

Under AB 361, the Commission and all other Plan Brown Act bodies, can hold meetings 
without providing notice of the each of body’s teleconference locations if the Commission 
(or its legislative bodies) make the determination that there is a Governor-proclaimed 
state of emergency which the Commission (and its legislative bodies) consider in their 
determination, and one of two secondary criteria listed below exists:  

1. State or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social

distancing in connection with COVID-19; or

2. The Commission (or its legislative bodies) determine that requiring a meeting in

person would present an imminent risk to the health and safety of attendees.

3. 

If adopted, the Commission may continue to meet as it has been meeting as long as the 

findings are made every thirty (30) days.  The public will still be able to attend the meetings 

in person in the Community Room or via phone or the internet.   

COVID-19 continues to present an imminent threat to the health and safety of 
Commission members, and its personnel, and the Governor’s declaration of a COVID-19 
emergency still exists. Although vaccines are now widely available, many people in the 
State and County are still not fully vaccinated and remain susceptible to infection. The 
disease can still spread rapidly through person-to-person contact and those in close 
proximity. Further, more contagious variants of the disease are now present in the State 
and County, the most predominant of which is the Delta variant. Additionally, many 
Commission and committee members hold meetings in medical facilities or offices, and 
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allowing members of the public to attend meetings at these posted locations when they 
may not be vaccinated may pose a threat to the health and safety of attendees.  

Because AB 361 is unclear if the Plan’s committees must make these findings as well, 
the Commission committees that are required to comply with the Brown Act will also be 
asked to make these findings. In case the law is clarified to state that only the governing 
body (the Commission) needs to make these findings, the Commission is being asked to 
make the findings for each of its Brown Act committees. 

Re-Authorization is Required Every 30 Days 

Consistent with the provisions of Government Code Section 54953(e)(3), the findings 
listed above must be made every 30 days “after teleconferencing for the first time” under 
AB 361. Thus, if the Commission desires to continue to meet remotely without having to 
post the location of each teleconference location, and require the same for its committees 
and other Plan Brown Act bodies, the Commission must find that the COVID-19 
emergency still exists and that one of the two following findings can be made: that state 
or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing 
in connection with COVID-19, or, that a result of the COVID-19 emergency, meeting in 
person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees. 

The Commission may extend the authorization for an additional thirty (30) days via 
another staff report on a consent calendar that makes the above specific findings in 
support of continuing virtual meetings. Doing this would require the scheduling of monthly 
meetings for the purpose of extending this authorization. 

Lastly, it is important to note that AB 361 is optional. If the Commission wishes, it may 
choose to meet fully in person or meet remotely with notices of the agenda posted at each 
location and access to the public at each noticed location. The authorization under AB 
361 is intended to provide the option to utilize the AB 361 procedures in lieu of the Brown 
Act’s standard teleconferencing requirements. A consent calendar item will be placed on 
each agenda to reauthorize remote meetings if that is the Commission’s direction. In the 
event that a regularly scheduled Commission meeting is more than thirty (30) days after 
an authorization under AB 361 has been made by the Commission, and the Commission 
desires to continue to hold virtual meetings under AB 361, the Commission may hold a 
special meeting for the purpose of making the reauthorization. 

CONSEQUENCES OF NOT FOLLOWING RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

As noted above, AB 361 is optional. If the Commission wishes, it may choose to meet 
fully in person, or meet remotely with notices of the agenda posted at each location and 
access to the public at each noticed location. However, to continue to hold remote 
teleconference/virtual meetings, the Commission must make the specific findings 
required by AB 361 as they are enumerated in this staff report to allow meetings to 
continue without the requirement of posting the agenda at each location and allowing 
members of the public to attend from any of the posted locations. Additionally, under AB 
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361, the Commission is required to provide members of the public the option of calling in 
or attending via the internet, even if all Commission member attend the meeting in person. 

FOLLOW UP ACTION: 

Potentially scheduling special meetings every thirty (30) days to extend this authorization. 

ATTACHMENT: 

None. 
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AGENDA ITEM NO. 6 

TO: Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission 

FROM: Nancy Wharfield, M.D., Chief Medical Officer 

Kim Timmerman, Director of Quality Improvement 

DATE:  October 25, 2021 

SUBJECT: Quality Improvement Committee – 2021 Third Quarter Report 

SUMMARY: 

The Department of Health Care Services (“DHCS”) requires Gold Coast Health Plan 

(“GCHP”) to implement an effective quality improvement system and to ensure that the 

governing body routinely receives written progress reports from the Quality Improvement 

Committee (“QIC”).  

The attached PPT report contains a summary of activities of the QIC and its 

subcommittees.  

APPROVAL ITEMS: 

• 2020 Quality Improvement Evaluation

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None  

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that the Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission 

approve the 2020 QI Evaluation as presented and receive and file the complete report as 

presented. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1) Timmerman, K., (2021). Quality Improvement, Ventura County Medi-Cal
Managed Care Commission, Quality Improvement Committee Report – Q3 2021,
Presentation Slides.
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AGENDA ITEM 7 

To: Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission 

From:  Kashina Bishop, Chief Financial Officer 

Date:  October 25, 2021 

Re: FY 2020-21 Audit Results (Presented by Moss Adams) 

SUMMARY: 
Moss Adams LLP (Moss Adams) is presenting the annual financial statements of Gold 
Coast Health Plan (GCHP) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021.  

The auditor’s report reflects an “unmodified opinion” which means the determination is 
that the financial statements for the audit period present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of GCHP as of June 30, 2021 in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION: 
The primary purpose of the audit is for the Commission and stakeholders to gain 
assurance that GCHP’s financial statements are properly presented, are free of material 
misstatements and have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the U.S.   

We are pleased to report that there were no audit adjustments.  From the preliminary 
June close, GCHP staff identified necessary adjustments and immediately communicated 
those to Moss Adams.  Below is a comparison of the June 30, 2021 financial statements 
approved by the Commission in July to the final audit report. 
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The net adjustment which improved the year end results is related to the receipt of revised 
capitation rates from the DHCS that were retroactive to January 2021.  There were some 
reclassifications from medical expense to a contra revenue account that did not impact 
the net results. 

A secondary and important purpose of the audit is to test and comment on the GCHP’s 
design and operation of internal controls that have a relationship with financial reporting.  
Moss Adams has identified a deficiency in internal controls related to Conduent claims 
processing and the impact that has in the medical expense estimation process.  Staff has 
increased internal review over claims and actively addressed issues as they arise.  In 
addition, GCHP retained over 60 temporary claims processors with strong claims 
processing experience to ensure complete adjudication of backlogged claims.    

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Commission approve the audited financial statements as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2021. 

CONCURRENCE 
N/A 

ATTACHMENT: 
Draft Report of Independent Auditors and Financial Statements for GCHP as of June 
30, 2021 and 2020 
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Communication of Internal Control Related Matters 

To the Management and Commissioners of 
Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission DBA Gold Coast Health Plan 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Ventura County Medi-Cal 
Managed Care Commission DBA Gold Coast Health Plan (the “Plan”) as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2021, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, we considered the Plan’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis 
for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Plan’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Plan’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. 
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 

Our audit was also not designed to identify deficiencies in internal control that might be significant 
deficiencies. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charged with governance. We consider the following deficiencies in the Plan’s internal control to be a 
significant deficiency: 

Conduent, Inc. Claims Processing 

During our control test procedures over the Health Solutions Plus Meditrac claims processing cycle, 
we noted that Conduent, Inc., the Plan’s third-party claims processing organization, has not 
consistently processed claims within the required 30 working days since the system was 
implemented in May 2021 and certain errors were noted in initial claims processing, both of which 
have caused payment errors and significant delays in processing claim payments. Additionally, the 
claims processing data utilized for the estimation of the medical claims liability contained reporting 
errors and was not categorized at a precise level, causing challenges in the estimation process. 

DRAFT
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Management’s Response: 

GCHP has aggressively monitored Conduent’s performance since the system conversion and 
consistently issued Notices of Deficiency and followed up to ensure Corrective Action Plans were 
defined. GCHP staff has increased manual review of claims payments to minimize errors.  In addition, 
GCHP retained over 60 temporary claims processors with strong claims processing experience to 
ensure complete adjudication of backlogged claims. GCHP has experienced some challenges in the 
data files utilized for the medical claims liability. GCHP has root caused the issues and works daily to 
remediate and update the data mapping.   

The Plan’s written response to the significant deficiency identified in our audit was not subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express 
no opinion on it. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, Commissioners 
and others within the organization, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other 
than these specified parties. 

San Francisco, California 
October __, 2021 

DRAFT
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Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission 
dba Gold Coast Health Plan 

1 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

The intent of the Management’s Discussion and Analysis is to provide readers with an overview of the Ventura 
County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission dba Gold Coast Health Plan’s (“GCHP” or the “Plan”) financial 
activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. This overview is provided in conjunction with the Plan’s 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 financial statements. Readers should review this overview in conjunction with 
GCHP’s financial statements and accompanying notes to the financial statements to enhance their understanding 
of the financial performance. 

GOLD COAST HEALTH PLAN OVERVIEW 

On June 2, 2009, the Ventura County Board of Supervisors approved the implementation of a county-organized 
health system (“COHS”) model to transition Ventura County Medi-Cal members from a fee-for-service model to a 
managed care model. Ordinance No. 4409 (April 2010) established the Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care 
Commission as an oversight entity. The Commission’s 11 members oversee a single plan—Gold Coast Health 
Plan—to serve Ventura County Medi-Cal beneficiaries.  

As a COHS, the Plan has an exclusive contract (the “Contract”) with the State of California (the “State”) Department 
of Health Care Services (“DHCS”) to arrange for the provision of health care services to Ventura County’s 
approximately 222,000 Medi-Cal beneficiaries at June 30, 2021. The Plan receives virtually 100 percent of its 
revenue in the form of capitation from the State of California. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This annual report consists of financial statements and notes to those statements, which reflect GCHP’s financial 
position and results of operations for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. The financial statements of 
GCHP include the statements of net position, statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, 
statements of cash flows, and notes to the financial statements. 

• The statements of net position includes all of GCHP’s assets and liabilities, using the accrual basis of
accounting.

• The statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position presents the results of operating activities
during the fiscal year and the resulting change in net position.

• The statements of cash flows reports the net cash provided by operating activities, as well as other sources,
and uses of cash from investing, capital, and related financing activities.

The following discussion and analysis addresses GCHP’s overall program activities. 
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2 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The table below presents condensed statements of net position of the Plan as of June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019: 

2021 2020 2019 Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
ASSETS

Current assets and other assets 350,936$         244,402$         237,883$         106,534$         43.6 % 6,519$             2.7 %
Capital assets, net 1,199               1,610               1,668               (411)                 (25.5)% (58)                   (3.5)%

Total assets 352,135           246,012           239,551           106,123           43.1 % 6,461               2.7 %

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 246,420           168,689           163,946           77,731             46.1 % 4,743               2.9 %

Total liabilities 246,420           168,689           163,946           77,731             46.1 % 4,743               2.9 %

NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets 1,198               1,610               1,668               (412)                 (25.6)% (58)                   (3.5)%
Unrestricted net position 104,517           75,713             73,937             28,804             38.0 % 1,776               2.4 %

Total net position 105,715           77,323             75,605             28,392             36.7 % 1,718               2.3 %

Total liabilities and net position 352,135$         246,012$         239,551$         106,123$         43.1 % 6,461$             2.7 %

2021 - 2020 Change 2020 - 2019 Change

Table 1 – Condensed Statements of Net Position as of June 30

(Dollars in Thousands)

 

FISCAL YEAR 2021 

• As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, total assets were approximately $352,135,000 and $246,012,000, respectively, 
an increase of $106,123,000 or 43.1 percent due to an increase in cash and cash equivalents driven by the 
increase in accrued medical expenses. 

• Current liabilities as of June 30, 2021, were $246,420,000 compared with $168,689,000 as of June 30, 2020, 
a 46.1 percent increase. The increase was primarily driven by an increase in accrued medical expenses 
resulting from claims inventory build-up that occurred due to the claims systems migration to Health Solutions 
Plus MediTrac. 

• The Plan’s total net position increased by approximately $28,392,000, or 36.7 percent, during fiscal 2021. This 
increase in net position was attributable to favorability in capitation rates from the State and overall reduced 
utilization as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, which resulted in a net position at June 30, 2021 of 
$105,715,000 compared to a net position of $77,323,000 at June 30, 2020. 

• Tangible Net Equity (“TNE”) at June 30, 2021, was 293 percent of the DHCS required minimum of $36,073,000.  

FISCAL YEAR 2020 

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, total assets were approximately $246,012,000 and $239,551,000 respectively, an 
increase of $6,461,000 or 2.7 percent. 

• Current liabilities at June 30, 2020, were $168,689,000, compared with $163,946,000 at June 30, 2019, a 2.9 
percent increase. The increase was primarily related to increases in accrued pharmacy.  
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• The Plan’s total net position increased by approximately $1,718,000, or 2.3 percent, during fiscal 2020. This
increase in net position was attributable to favorability in capitation rates from the State, which resulted in a net
position at June 30, 2020 of $77,323,000 from a net position of $75,605,000 at June 30, 2019.

• TNE at June 30, 2020, was 225 percent of the DHCS required minimum of $34,440,000.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

As mentioned above, GCHP’s fiscal 2021 operations and nonoperating revenues and expenses, net resulted in a 
$28,392,000 increase in net position. GCHP’s fiscal 2020 operations and nonoperating revenues and expenses, 
net resulted in a $1,718,000 increase in net position. The following table shows the changes in revenues and 
expenses for 2021 compared to 2020 and 2020 compared to 2019. 

2021 2020 2019 Amount Percentage Amount Percentage

Capitation revenues 985,385$         854,969$         808,723$         130,416$         15.3 % 46,246$           5.7 %

Total operating revenues 985,385           854,969           808,723           130,416           15.3 % 46,246             5.7 %

Provider capitation 87,192             58,648             56,824             28,544             48.7 % 1,824 3.2 %
Claim payments to providers and facilities 570,844           552,877           521,847           17,967             3.2 % 31,030             5.9 %
Prescription drugs 159,068           143,601           134,567           15,467             10.8 % 9,034 6.7 %
Other medical 16,624             15,493             16,212             1,131 7.3 % (719) (4.4)%
Reinsurance, net of recoveries (3,549)              (895) (3,496) (2,654)              296.5 % 2,601 (74.4)%

Total health care expenses 830,179           769,724           725,954           60,455             7.9 % 43,770             6.0 %

Salaries, benefits, and compensation 14,635             15,560             14,897             (925) (5.9)% 663 4.5 %
Professional fees 29,220             28,449             25,639             771 2.7 % 2,810 11.0 %
General administrative fees 3,118 3,258 2,766 (140) (4.3)% 492 17.8 %
Supplies, occupancy, insurance, and other 2,020 2,265 2,221 (245) (10.8)% 44 2.0 %
Premium tax 77,637             34,505             96,569             43,132             125.0 % (62,064)            (64.3)%
Depreciation 514 467 534 47 10.1 % (67) (12.5)%

Total administrative expenses 127,144           84,504             142,626           42,640             50.5 % (58,122)            (40.8)%

Total operating expenses 957,323           854,228           868,580           103,095           12.1 % (14,352)            (1.7)%

Operating income (loss) 28,062             741 (59,857)            27,321             3687.0 % 60,598             (101.2)%

Interest income 458 1,800 3,993 (1,342)              (74.6)% (2,193)              (54.9)%
Interest expense (128) (823) (646) 695 (84.4)% (177) 27.4 %

Total nonoperating revenues and expenses, net 330 977 3,347 (647) (66.2)% (2,370)              (70.8)%

Increase (decrease) in net position 28,392             1,718 (56,510)            26,674             1552.6 % 58,228             (103.0)%

Total net position, beginning of year 77,323             75,605             132,115           1,718 2.3 % (56,510)            (42.8)%

Total net position, end of year 105,715$         77,323$           75,605$           28,392$           36.7 % 1,718$             2.3 %

2021 to 2020 Change 2020 to 2019 Change

Table 2 – Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for

Fiscal Years Ended June 30

(Dollars in Thousands)
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ENROLLMENT, CAPITATION REVENUE AND HEALTH CARE EXPENSES 

ENROLLMENT 

Enrollment is divided into aid categories, which correspond to specific rates of capitation to be received by the Plan 
from the State. During fiscal 2021, the Plan served an average of 213,585 members per month, compared to an 
average of 194,879 members per month in fiscal 2020 and an average of 199,109 members per month in fiscal 
2019. The increase in enrollment is attributed to the moratorium on redeterminations as a result of the COVID-19 
pandemic. 

Enrollment Category 2021 2020 2019

Child 89,885  86,238  89,325  
Adult 28,535  24,009  24,407  
Adult Expansion 63,226  53,798  54,220  
Seniors and Persons with Disabilities ("SPD") 10,310  10,169  9,344  
SPD - Dual 20,748  19,628  20,747  
Breast and Cervical Cancer Treatment Program ("BCCTP") 76  154  171  
Long Term Care ("LTC") 49  53  27  
LTC - Dual 757  830  868  

Total average monthly enrollment 213,586  194,879  199,109  

Table 3 – Medi-Cal Enrollment by Aid Category
(Shown as Average Member Months)

Significant aid categories are defined as follows: 

1. Child: Qualifying members under age 19.

2. Adult: Qualifying members between the ages of 19 and 64.

3. Adult Expansion (“AE”): Refers to members who became eligible for the Medi-Cal program effective
January 1, 2014, as a result of the implementation of the Affordable Care Act (“ACA”) and the expanded
eligibility criteria for Medicaid.

4. Senior and Persons with Disabilities (“SPD”)*: Includes individuals who are 65 years of age and older who
receive supplemental security income (SSI) checks, or are medically needy if their income and resources
are within the Medi-Cal limits, and individuals who met the criteria for disability set by the Social Security
Administration and the State Program-Disability and Audit Program Division.

5. Long-Term Care* (“LTC”): Includes frail, elderly, nonelderly adults with disabilities and children with
developmental disabilities, and other disabling conditions requiring long-term care services.
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6. Breast and Cervical Cancer Treatment Program (“BCCTP”): Provides cancer treatment for eligible low-
income California residents who are screened by the Cancer Detection Program: Every Woman Counts
(“CDP:EWC”) or Family Planning, Access, Care and Treatment (“Family PACT”) programs and found to be
in the need of treatment for breast and/or cervical cancer.  For the CY2021 rate year this category of aid
was rolled into the SPD category of aid.

*”Dual” coverage refers to enrollees who are eligible for both Medi-Cal and Medicare Parts A, B, and D. 

FISCAL YEAR 2021 

CAPITATION REVENUE 

Premium revenue (capitation received by the Plan from the State) is determined by rates set by the State at the 
beginning of the plan year and generally are effective for the entire year. The State may, on occasion, provide 
updated rates during the fiscal year. Total revenue for fiscal year 2021 was $985,385,000, a 15.3 percent increase 
from the prior year. The increase was primarily attributable to favorability in capitation rates from the State. 

HEALTH CARE EXPENSES 

Aggregate health care expenses were $830,179,000 in fiscal 2021, compared to $769,724,000 in fiscal 2020, which 
is an increase of 7.9 percent. The Plan’s medical loss ratio, or health care expenses as a percent of operating 
revenues (net of Managed Care Organization (“MCO”) taxes), was 91.5 percent in fiscal 2021, compared to 93.8 
percent in fiscal 2020. 

Note the following regarding the components of health care expenses: 

1. Provider capitation represents monthly payments for members assigned to primary care providers who
have agreed to accept risk to provide specific services (when needed) to their members. Rates are fixed
by contract and are generally known at the beginning of the fiscal year. Capitation expense for fiscal 2021
was $87,192,000, or $28,544,000 higher than in fiscal 2020. The increase was primarily due to a contract
change with a provider in which they took on additional services as well as higher capitated membership
from prior year.

2. Pharmacy expenses were $159,068,000, or $15,467,000 higher in fiscal 2021 than in the prior year. The
10.8 percent increase in costs were impacted by an overall increase in utilization and an overall increase
in unit costs consistent with a national trend and allowing for 90-day supplies starting in the latter half of
fiscal 2020 due to COVID-19 and continuing through the entire fiscal 2021.

3. Other medical, including care management, expense was $16,624,000 in fiscal 2021, or $1,131,000 and
7.3 percent higher than in fiscal 2020. The increase was primarily due to an increase in care management
expenses from the prior year due to additional staffing and software costs.

4. Total reinsurance, net of recoveries and provider refunds resulted in a $3,549,000 reduction to health care
expenses in fiscal 2021, versus $895,000 in fiscal 2020.
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Administrative Expenses 

Total administrative expenses were approximately $127,144,000 in fiscal 2021, compared to $84,504,000 in fiscal 
2020, for an increase of $42,640,000. The increase was predominantly due to premium tax expense, which was 
$77,637,000 in fiscal year 2021 compared to $34,505,000 in fiscal year 2020. The increase in premium tax was 
due to a 6-month gap in required premium tax in fiscal 2020. Senate Bill X2-2 established the managed care 
organization tax between July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2019. The tax was renewed with the Centers for Medicare 
and Medicaid Services CMS approval of Assembly Bill 115 with an effective date of January 1, 2020. 

Senate Bill (“SB”) X2-2, which passed in March 2016, redefined the premium tax payment and calculation. Per SB 
X2-2, the tax rate was a pre-determined liability based on DHCS projected Medi-Cal membership, and specified 
rates and was effective through June 30, 2019. Assembly Bill 115 re-established a managed care enrollment tax, 
using a modified tiered taxing model. On April 3, 2020, the federal government approved the State’s revised 
proposal to implement a tax on MCOs to help fund the Medi-Cal program. The new AB115 MCO tax is effective 
from January 2020 through December 2022. 

FISCAL YEAR 2020 

CAPITATION REVENUE 

Premium revenue (capitation received by the Plan from the State) is determined by rates set by the State at the 
beginning of the plan year and generally are effective for the entire year. The State may, on occasion, provide 
updated rates during the fiscal year. Total revenue for fiscal year 2020 was $854,969,000, a 5.7 percent increase 
from the prior year. The increase was primarily attributable to favorability in capitation rates from the State. 

HEALTH CARE EXPENSES 

Aggregate health care expenses were $769,724,000 in fiscal 2020, compared to $725,954,000 in fiscal 2019, which 
is an increase of 6.0 percent. The Plan’s medical loss ratio, or health care expenses as a percent of operating 
revenues (net of MCO taxes), was 93.8 percent in fiscal 2020, compared to 101.9 percent in fiscal 2019. 

Note the following regarding the components of health care expenses: 

1. Provider capitation represents monthly payments for members assigned to primary care providers who 
have agreed to accept risk to provide specific services (when needed) to their members. Rates are fixed 
by contract and are generally known at the beginning of the fiscal year. Capitation expense for fiscal 2020 
was $58,648,000, or $1,824,000 higher than in fiscal 2019. The increase was primarily due to a contract 
change with a provider in which they took on additional services. 

2. Pharmacy expenses were $143,601,000, or $9,034,000 higher in fiscal 2020 than in the prior year. The 6.7 
percent increase in costs were impacted by an overall increase in utilization, primarily for dermatology and 
diabetes, and an overall increase in unit costs consistent with a national trend and allowing for 90-day 
supplies in the latter half of fiscal 2020 due to COVID-19. 
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3. Other medical, including care management, expense was $15,493,000 in fiscal 2020, or $719,000 and 4.4
percent lower than in fiscal 2019. The decrease was primarily due to a decrease in provider reserves in
fiscal 2020, which was partially offset by an increase in care management expenses from the prior year
due to additional staffing and software costs.

4. Total reinsurance, net of recoveries and provider refunds resulted in a $895,000 reduction to health care
expenses in fiscal 2020, versus $3,496,000 in fiscal 2019.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

Total administrative expenses were approximately $84,504,000 in fiscal 2020, compared to $142,626,000 in fiscal 
2019, for a decrease of $58,122,000. The decrease was predominantly due to premium tax expense, which was 
$34,505,000 in fiscal year 2020 compared to $96,569,000 in fiscal year 2019. The decrease in premium tax was 
due to a 6-month gap in required premium tax. Senate Bill X2-2 established the managed care organization tax 
between July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2019. The tax was renewed with the CMS approval of Assembly Bill 115 
with an effective date of January 1, 2020. 

Senate Bill X2-2, which passed in March 2016, redefined the premium tax payment and calculation. Per SB X2-2, 
the tax rate was a pre-determined liability based on DHCS projected Medi-Cal membership, and specified rates 
and was effective through June 30, 2019. Assembly Bill 115 re-established a managed care enrollment tax, using 
a modified tiered taxing model. On April 3, 2020, the federal government approved the State’s revised proposal to 
implement a tax on MCOs to help fund the Medi-Cal program. The new AB115 MCO tax is effective from January 
2020 through December 2022. 

Other administrative expenses increased from the prior year due to increased expenses related to Enterprise 
Projects as compared to prior years and increases in staffing. 

Tangible Net Equity 

GCHP is required by DHCS to maintain certain levels of TNE. Regulatory TNE levels are determined by formula 
and are based on specified percentages of revenue and medical expenses. Driven by its operating performance, 
the Plan’s TNE at June 30, 2021 was $105,715,000, which exceeded the required TNE amount of $36,073,000. 
The Plan’s TNE at June 30, 2020, was $77,323,000, which exceeded the required TNE amount of $34,440,000. 
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June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019

Actual TNE, beginning balance 77,323$   75,605$   132,115$   
Change in net position 28,392  1,718  (56,510)  

Actual TNE, ending balance 105,715$   77,323$   75,605$   

Required TNE 36,073$   34,440$   32,907$   

(in thousands)

Table 4 – Tangible Net Equity (TNE)
(Dollars in Thousands)

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report has been prepared in the spirit of full disclosure to provide the reader with an overview of 
GCHP’s operations. If the reader has questions or would like additional information about GCHP, please direct the 
request to GCHP, 711 East Daily Drive, Suite 106, Camarillo, CA 93010 or call 805-437-5500. 
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Report of Independent Auditors 

The Commission 
Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission dba Gold Coast Health Plan 
Camarillo, California 

Report on Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care 
Commission dba Gold Coast Health Plan (“GCHP” or the “Plan”) (a discrete component unit of the 
County of Ventura, California), which comprise the statements of net position as of June 30, 2021 and 
2020, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, and cash flows 
for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of GCHP as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash 
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 1 through 8 be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, which considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing 
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We 
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  

San Francisco, California 
[DATE] 
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Statements of Net Position 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

2021 2020
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 193,947,004$   89,586,429$ 
Short-term investments 43,515,100     43,040,224
Capitation receivable 103,174,578     102,000,828
Provider receivables 1,754,312        727,334
Reinsurance and other receivables 6,440,232        7,141,958
Prepaid expenses and other assets 2,104,933     1,905,555

Total current assets 350,936,159  244,402,328  

CAPITAL ASSETS 1,198,472  1,610,328

Total assets 352,134,631$   246,012,656$ 

LIABILITIES
Medical claims liability 173,767,418$   102,596,475$ 
Capitation payable 26,699,447     18,217,262
Payable to the State of California 14,936,921     5,257,358
Accounts payable 1,683,582     2,363,635
Accrued payroll and employee benefits 2,195,823     2,187,982
Accrued premium tax 19,409,220     34,505,280
Accrued expenses and other 7,727,364     3,561,402

Total current liabilities 246,419,775  168,689,394  

Total liabilities 246,419,775  168,689,394  

NET POSITION
Net invested in capital assets 1,198,472 1,610,328
Unrestricted net position 104,516,384  75,712,934  

Total net position 105,714,856  77,323,262  

Total liabilities and net position 352,134,631$     246,012,656$   

June 30,
ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
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Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 

2021 2020
OPERATING REVENUES

Capitation revenues 985,384,706$     854,968,887$   

Total operating revenues 985,384,706       854,968,887  

OPERATING EXPENSES
Health care expenses

Provider capitation 87,191,841  58,647,943  
Claim payments to providers and facilities 570,844,057  552,877,249  
Prescription drugs 159,068,436  143,601,339  
Other medical 16,623,754  15,492,871  
Reinsurance, net of recoveries (3,549,024)  (895,291)  

Total health care expenses 830,179,064  769,724,111  

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries, benefits, and compensation 14,635,320  15,560,002  
Professional fees 29,219,779  28,448,531  
General administrative fees 3,118,060  3,258,036  
Supplies, occupancy, insurance, and other 2,020,162  2,264,505  
Premium tax 77,636,880  34,505,280  
Depreciation 514,342  467,455  

Total administrative expenses 127,144,543  84,503,809  

Total operating expenses 957,323,607  854,227,920  

Operating income 28,061,099  740,967  

NONOPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES, NET 
Interest income 459,359  1,800,513  
Interest expense (128,864)  (823,164)  

Total nonoperating revenues and expenses, net 330,495  977,349  

Increase in net position 28,391,594  1,718,316  

NET POSITION, beginning of year 77,323,262  75,604,946  

NET POSITION, end of year 105,714,856$     77,323,262$   
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Statements of Cash Flows 
Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 

2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Capitation revenues received 993,890,519$              812,509,761$                  
Reinsurance premiums paid (4,233,183)                   (3,387,261)                       
Payments to providers and facilities (746,807,828)               (761,098,988)                   
Payments of premium tax (92,732,940)                 (23,626,246)                     
Payments of administrative expenses (45,698,961)                 (48,367,314)                     

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 104,417,607                (23,970,048)                     

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Purchases of capital assets (104,101)                      (410,013)                          
Interest payments (128,864)                      (823,166)                          

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities                                                                                                                       (232,965)                      (1,233,179)                       

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from sale of investments -                               5,000,000                        
Interest income 175,933                       825,344                           

Net cash provided by investing activities 175,933                       5,825,344                        

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 104,360,575                (19,377,883)                     

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 89,586,429                  108,964,312                    

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 193,947,004$              89,586,429$                    

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Operating income 28,061,099$                740,967$                         
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by

(used in) operating activities
Depreciation 514,342                  467,455                      
Changes in assets and liabilities

Receivables (1,688,825)           (30,214,369)             
Prepaid expenses and other assets (199,378)              292,304                   
Medical claims liability 71,170,943          13,127,479              
Capitation payable 8,482,185            (9,780,522)               
Payable to the State of California 9,679,563            (10,353,850)             
Accounts payable (680,053)              (1,894,150)               
Accrued premium tax and other liabilities (10,922,269)         13,644,638              

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 104,417,607$              (23,970,048)$                   
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Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS 

Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission dba Gold Coast Health Plan (“GCHP” or the “Plan”) is a 
county-organized health system (“COHS”) organized to serve Medi-Cal beneficiaries living in Ventura County, 
California. The formation of GCHP was approved by the Board of Supervisors of the County of Ventura in December 
2009 through the adoption of Ordinance No. 4409. 

As a COHS, GCHP maintains an exclusive contract (the “Contract”) with the State of California Department of 
Health Care Services (“DHCS”) to arrange for the provision of health care services to Ventura County’s 
approximately 200,000 Medi-Cal beneficiaries. All of GCHP’s revenues are earned from the State of California (the 
“State”) in the form of capitation payments. Revenue is primarily based on enrollment and capitation rates as 
provided for in the Contract. The Plan began providing services to Medi-Cal beneficiaries in July 2011. In August 
2013, the State of California transferred the Healthy Families Program members in Ventura County into the Medi-
Cal program, Targeted Low Income Program (“TLIC”). In January 2014, the federal Affordable Care Act (“ACA”) 
expanded health coverage to certain adults age 19 or older and under 65 and resulted in new enrollment through 
Adult Expansion (“AE”) and other population groups. 

NOTE 2 – COMPLIANCE WITH THE DHCS, CONCENTRATION RISK, AND RESTRICTED NET POSITION 

GCHP’s contract with the DHCS includes several financial and nonfinancial requirements. As established by the 
contract, GCHP is required to meet and maintain a minimum level of tangible net equity (“TNE”). TNE is defined as 
the excess of total assets over total liabilities, excluding subordinated liabilities and intangible assets.  

Required and actual TNE are as follows: 

2021 2020

Actual TNE, beginning balance 77,323$   75,605$        
Change in net position 28,392  1,718  

Reportable TNE 105,715$   77,323$   

Required TNE 36,073$   34,440$   

June 30,

(in thousands)

The ability of GCHP to continue as a going concern is dependent on its continued compliance with the DHCS 
requirements. The loss of this contract would have an adverse effect on GCHP’s future operations. 

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the COVID-19 virus spread a pandemic and public health 
emergency. The duration and intensity of the disruption from the pandemic is uncertain. Therefore, there may be 
adverse financial pressures on GCHP that could impact GCHP’s future operations. 
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NOTE 3 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of presentation – GCHP is a county‐organized health system governed by an 11‐member Ventura County 
Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission appointed by the Ventura County Board of Supervisors. Effective for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2011, GCHP began reporting as a discrete component unit of the County of Ventura, California. 
The County made this determination based on the County Board of Supervisors having the right to elect 100 percent 
of the GCHP Commissioners.  

Basis of accounting – GCHP uses enterprise fund accounting. Revenues and expenses are recognized on the 
accrual basis, using the economic resources measurement focus. The accompanying financial statements have 
been prepared in accordance with the standards of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”).  

Use of estimates – The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

Fair value of financial instruments – The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate fair value 
because of the short maturity of these financial instruments. The carrying amounts reported in the statement of net 
position for capitation receivable, provider receivables, reinsurance and other receivables, prepaid expenses and 
other assets, medical claims liability and capitation payable, accounts payable, premium reserve, accrued payroll, 
and accrued premium tax and other liabilities approximate their fair values, as they are expected to be realized 
within the next fiscal year. 

Cash and cash equivalents – Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid instruments purchased with an 
original maturity of three months or less when purchased.  

Custodial credit risk-deposits – Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, GCHP may not 
be able to recover its deposits or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The California 
Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by public agencies by pledging 
securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under the state law. As of June 30, 2021 
and 2020, all accounts were covered by posted collateral. 

Investments – Investments are stated at fair value in accordance with GASB Codification Section 150. The fair 
value of investments is estimated based on quoted market prices, when available. For debt securities not actively 
traded, fair values are estimated using values obtained from external pricing services or are estimated by 
discounting the expected future cash flows, using current market rates applicable to the coupon rate, credit and 
maturity of the investments.  

All investments with an original maturity of one year or less when purchased are recorded as current investments, 
unless designated or restricted for long-term purposes.  
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Capitation receivable – Capitation receivable represents capitation revenue for the years ended June 30, 2021 
and 2020, received subsequent to June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Capitation receivable also includes final 
revenue rate adjustments based on communications from the DHCS. Management determines the allowance for 
doubtful accounts by regularly evaluating individual receivables and considering payment history, financial 
condition, and current economic conditions. Subsequent adjustments to the contracted rates or enrollments are 
recognized in the period the adjustment is determined.  

Provider receivables – Provider receivables are recorded for all claim refunds due from providers. Management 
determines the allowance for doubtful accounts by regularly evaluating individual receivables and considering 
payment history, financial condition, and current economic conditions. 

Reinsurance – In the normal course of business, the Plan seeks to reduce the loss that may arise from events that 
cause unfavorable medical claim results by reinsuring certain levels of risk in various areas of exposure with a 
reinsurer. Amounts recoverable from reinsurance are estimated in a manner consistent with the development of the 
medical claim liability. 

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers that relate to paid claims are classified as assets and as a reduction to medical 
expenses incurred. Reinsurance premiums paid are included in medical expenses. 

Capital assets – Capital assets are stated at cost at the date of acquisition. The costs of normal maintenance, 
repairs, and minor replacements are expensed when incurred. Capital assets acquired but not yet placed into 
service are reported as construction in progress. Construction-in-progress assets are not depreciated until they are 
placed into service. 

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Long-lived 
assets are periodically reviewed for impairment. The estimated useful lives of three to seven years are used for 
furniture, fixtures, computer equipment, and software. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the life of the 
lease or estimated useful life, whichever is shorter. Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 
2020, was approximately $514,000 and $467,000, respectively. 

Medical claims liability, capitation payable, and medical expenses – GCHP establishes a claims liability based 
on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims in process and a provision for claims incurred but not yet reported, which 
is actuarially determined based on historical claims payment experience and other operational changes. In cases 
where adequate historical claims payment experience does not yet exist for a new population, a book-to-budget 
methodology is used in which GCHP relies on state-developed medical rates or medical loss ratios to estimate 
claims liabilities.  

Such reserves are continually monitored and reviewed, with any adjustments made as necessary in the period the 
adjustment is determined. Management believes that the claims liability is adequate and fairly stated; however, this 
liability is based on estimates, and the ultimate liability may differ from the amount provided. 
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GCHP has provider services agreements with several health networks in Ventura County, whereby the health 
networks provide care directly to covered members or through subcontracts with other health care providers. 
Payment for the services provided by the health networks is on a fully capitated basis. The capitation amount is 
based on contractually agreed‐upon terms with each health network. GCHP may withhold amounts from providers 
at an agreed-upon percentage of capitation payments made to ensure the financial solvency of each contract. The 
capitation expense is included in provider capitation in the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net 
position.  

Payable to the State of California – The liability at June 30, 2021 and 2020 was approximately $14,937,000 and 
$5,257,000, respectively, due to state of California funding programs that have minimum Medical Loss Ratio 
(“MLR”) requirements and potential amounts due back to the State. The balance as of June 30, 2021 represents 
an estimate due back to the State of California for the Proposition 56 programs in effect for state fiscal years 2018 
and 2019. The balance as of June 30, 2020 represents an estimate due back to the State of California for the 
Proposition 56 programs in effect for state fiscal year 2019. The liability may vary depending on actual claims 
experience and final reconciliation and audit results. This liability is presented in the payable to the State of California 
in the accompanying statements of net position.  

Accounts payable and accrued expenses – GCHP is required to estimate certain expenses, including accrued 
payroll, payroll taxes, and professional services fees, as of each statement of net position date and make 
appropriate accruals based on these estimates. Estimates are affected by the status and timing of services provided 
relative to the actual level of services performed by the service providers. The date on which certain services 
commence, the level of services performed on or before a given date, and the cost of services are often subject to 
judgment. These judgments are based upon the facts and circumstances known at the date of the financial 
statements. For the periods presented in the financial statements, there were no material adjustments to the 
estimates for accrued payroll, payroll taxes, and professional services fees. 

Premium deficiency reserves – GCHP performed an analysis of its expected future health care and maintenance 
costs to determine whether such costs will exceed anticipated future revenues under its contracts. Should expected 
costs exceed anticipated revenues, a premium deficiency reserve would be accrued. A premium deficiency reserve 
was not required at June 30, 2021 or 2020. 

Accrued compensated absences – GCHP’s policy permits eligible employees to accrue vacation based on their 
individual employment agreements. Unused vacation may be carried over into subsequent years, up to limits 
indicated in their employment agreements. Accumulated vacation will be paid to the employee upon separation 
from service with GCHP. All compensated absences are accrued and recorded in accordance with GASB Statement 
No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences, and are included in accrued payroll and employee benefits in the 
accompanying statements of net position. 
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Premium taxes – Senate Bill X2-2, which passed in March 2016, redefined the premium tax payment and 
calculation. Per SB X2-2, the tax rate was a pre-determined liability based on DHCS projected Medi-Cal 
membership, and specified rates and was effective through June 30, 2019. Assembly Bill 115, Committee on 
Budget, Chapter 348, Statutes of 2019, re-established a managed care enrollment tax, using a modified tiered 
taxing model and the implementation of the tax is projected to generate a net state benefit of approximately $7 
billion over the three-year duration of the tax. On April 3, 2020, the federal government approved the state’s revised 
proposal to implement a tax on Managed Care Organizations (“MCO”) to help fund the Medi-Cal program. The new 
MCO tax is effective from January 2020 through December 2022. The DHCS calculated GCHP’s total MCO tax 
liabilities for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, to be approximately $77,637,000 and $34,505,000, 
respectively. A premium tax refund receivable of approximately $6,321,000 and $6,833,000 was recognized at June 
30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and is included in the reinsurance and other receivables balance on the 
accompanying statements of net position. 

Net position – Net position is broken down into three categories, defined as follows: 

Net invested in capital assets – This component of net position consists of capital assets, including restricted capital 
assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and is reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, notes, or other 
borrowings that are attributable (if any) to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

Restricted – This component of net position consists of external constraints placed on net asset used by creditors 
(such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or law or regulations of other governments. It also pertains 
to constraints imposed by law or constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. There were no amounts classified 
as restricted net position as of June 30, 2021 or 2020. 

Unrestricted – This component of net position consists of net position that does not meet the definition of “restricted” 
or “net invested in capital assets.” 

Revenue recognition – Capitation revenue received under the Contract is recognized during the period in which 
GCHP is obligated to provide medical service to the beneficiaries. This revenue is based on estimated enrollment 
provided monthly by the DHCS and capitation rates as provided for in the DHCS Contract. Enrollment and the 
capitation rates are subject to retrospective changes by the DHCS. As such, capitation revenue includes an estimate 
for amounts receivable from or refundable to the DHCS for these retrospective changes in estimates. These 
estimates are continually monitored and reviewed, with any changes in estimates recognized in the period when 
determined. 

During the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, GCHP received approximately $47,791,000 and $27,828,000, 
respectively, of supplemental fee revenue from the DHCS as a hospital quality assurance fee (“HQAF”) as a result 
of SB 229 and SB 335, respectively.  

DHCS implemented a managed care Designated Public Hospital (“DPH”) Quality Incentive Pool (“QIP”) that was 
expanded effective July 1, 2020 under which managed care plans were directed to make QIP payments tied to 
performance on designated performance metrics in four strategic categories: primary care, specialty care, inpatient 
care, and resource utilization. The QIP payments are linked to delivery of services under the managed care plan 
contracts and increase the amount of funding tied to quality outcomes. During the years ended June 30, 2021 and 
2020, GCHP received approximately $97,215,000 and $51,212,000, respectively, in QIP payments.   
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DHCS also established a Directed Payments DPH Enhanced Payment Program (“EPP”) under which managed 
care providers were directed to reimburse California’s 21 DPHs for network contracted services delivered by DPH 
systems, enhanced by either a uniform percentage or dollar increment based on actual utilization of network 
contracted services. The State will evaluate the extent to which enhanced payments are achieving the goals 
identified. During the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, GCHP received approximately $31,101,000 and 
$30,685,000, respectively, through the EPP.   

DHCS also established a Private Hospital Directed Payment Program (“PHDPP”) under which managed care 
providers were directed to reimburse private hospitals as defined in WIC 14169.51, based on actual utilization of 
contracted services. The enhanced payment is contingent upon hospitals providing adequate access to service, 
including primary, specialty, and inpatient (both tertiary and quaternary) care. During the years ended June 30, 
2021 and 2020, GCHP received approximately $45,441,000 and $29,931,000, respectively, through the PHDPP. 

GCHP passed these HQAF, QIP, EPP and PHDPP funds through to providers. These amounts were not reflected 
in the accompanying financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, as the amounts passed 
through to the providers do not meet requirements for revenue recognition under Government Accounting 
Standards (“GAS”). 

GCHP has an agreement with the DHCS to receive an intergovernmental transfer (“IGT”) through a capitation rate 
increase of $39,931,000 and $34,987,000 recorded in years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Under 
the agreement, these funds that are distributed to providers are not reported on the statements of revenues, 
expenses and changes in net position, or the statements of net position, as these amounts do not meet requirements 
for revenue recognition under GAS. GCHP did not retain any of this IGT during the years ended June 30, 2021 and 
2020 for administrative costs.  

Operating revenues and expenses – GCHP’s statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position 
distinguish between operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses. Operating revenues result from exchange 
transactions associated with arranging for the provision of health care services. Operating expenses are all 
expenses incurred to arrange for the provision of health care services, as well as the costs of administration. Claims 
adjustment expenses are an estimate of the cost to process the claims and are included in operating expenses. 
Nonexchange revenues and expenses are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

Administrative expenses – Administrative expenses are recognized as incurred and consist of administrative 
expenses that directly relate to the implementation and operation costs of the Plan. Capitation contract acquisition 
costs are expensed in the period incurred. 

Defined contribution plan – GCHP has adopted, and its employees are participants in, the California Public 
Agencies Self-Directed Tax-Advantaged Retirement System (“CPA STARS”). CPA STARS is a California public 
trust organized under the laws of the State of California and includes the STARS 401(a) Retirement Plan (the “401 
Plan”), which is a retirement plan under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. GCHP participation in the 
401 Plan is defined by the 401(a) Trust Agreement and the 401 Plan Agreement between GCHP and CPA STARS. 

All regular employees participate in the CPA STARS 401 Plan. Employee contributions to the 401 Plan are not 
allowed. GCHP makes employer contributions to the 401 Plan in an amount annually determined under the 401 
Plan Agreement. For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, GCHP contributions to the 401 Plan were 
$1,855,000 and $1,863,000, respectively. 
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Deferred compensation plan – GCHP has adopted, and its employees are participants in, the CPA STARS 457(b) 
deferred compensation plan (the “457 Plan”). The 457 Plan was created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code 
Section 457 and permits employees to defer a portion of their annual salary until future years. GCHP participation 
in the 457 Plan is defined by the 457 Trust Agreement between GCHP and CPA STARS. Employee participation in 
the 457 Plan is voluntary, and GCHP has not made any contributions. As such, there were no GCHP employer 
contributions for years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

Income taxes – GCHP operates under the purview of the Internal Revenue Code, Section 501(a) and 
corresponding California Revenue and Taxation Code provisions. As such, GCHP is not subject to federal or state 
taxes. Accordingly, no provision for income tax has been recorded in the accompanying financial statements. 

Risk management – GCHP is exposed to various risks of loss from torts, business interruption, errors and 
omissions, and natural disasters. Commercial insurance coverage is purchased by GCHP for claims arising from 
such matters. No claims have exceeded commercial coverage. 

Recent accounting pronouncements – In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities 
(“GASB 84”). The principal objective of GASB 84 is to enhance the consistency and comparability of fiduciary activity 
reporting by state and local governments. GASB 84 is also intended to improve the usefulness of fiduciary activity 
information primarily for assessing the accountability of governments in their roles as fiduciaries. In May 2020, the 
GASB issued Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance, which 
deferred the effective date of GASB 84 to reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. GCHP adopted 
GASB 84 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, which did not have a significant impact on the financial 
statements.  

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases (“GASB 87”). GASB 87 increases the usefulness of 
financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were 
classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the 
payment provisions of the contract. GASB 87 also establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the 
foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. In May 2020, the GASB 
issued Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance, which deferred 
the effective date of GASB 87 to reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. GCHP is reviewing the impact of 
the adoption of GASB 87 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. 

In May 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements 
(“GASB 96”). GASB 96 provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based 
information technology arrangements (“SBITA”) for government end users (governments). GASB 96 (1) defines a 
SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset—an intangible asset—and a 
corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription 
payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. To the 
extent relevant, the standards for SBITAs are based on the standards established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as 
amended. The requirements of GASB 96 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022, and all 
reporting periods thereafter. GCHP is reviewing the impact of the adoption of GASB 96 for the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2023.   
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NOTE 4 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

Investments – The Plan invests in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, other U.S. government agencies and 
instrumentalities, state obligations, corporate securities, and money market funds. 

Interest rate risk – In accordance with its Annual Investment Policy (“investment policy”), GCHP manages its 
exposure to decline in fair value from increasing interest rates by matching maturity dates to the extent possible 
with the Plan’s expected cash flow draws. Its investment policy limits maturities to five years, while also staggering 
maturities. The Plan maintains a low-weighted average maturity strategy, targeting a portfolio with maturities of 
three years or less, with the intent of reducing interest rate risk. Portfolios with low weighted average maturities are 
less volatile because they are less sensitive to interest rate changes. As of June 30, 2021, the weighted average 
maturity of GCHP’s investments, including cash equivalents was approximately 1 day.  

The Plan’s investments at June 30, 2021, are summarized as follows: 

Fair Value
Maximum 
Maturity*

Weighted 
Average 

Maturity (Years)

Weighted 
Average 

Maturity (Days)

Cal Trust Investment Fund 3,771$   N/A -   1  
Local Agency Investment Fund 206,976  N/A -   1  
Ventura County Investment Pool 43,304,353  N/A -   1  

43,515,100$   -   1  

*Per investment policy (Gov't code section 53601)

Investment Type

Credit risk – GCHP’s investment policy conforms to the California Government Code as well as to customary 
standards of prudent investment management. Credit risk is mitigated by investing in only permitted investments. 
The investment policy sets minimum acceptable credit ratings for investments from two nationally recognized rating 
services: Standard and Poor’s Corporation (“S&P”), and Moody’s Investor Service (“Moody’s”). For an issuer of 
short-term debt, the rating must be no less than A-1 (S&P) or P-1 (Moody’s), while an issuer of long-term debt shall 
be rated no less than an “A.” 

Credit ratings of investments and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2021, are summarized below: 

Fair Value
Minimum Legal 

Rating*
Exempt from 

rating A-1 / P-1 A1 / AA+ A1 / A+ A2 / A

Cal Trust Investment Fund 3,771$     None 3,771$     -$    -$   -$   -$    
Local Agency Investment Fund 206,976   None 206,976   -  -   -  -   
Ventura County Investment Pool 43,304,353   None 43,304,353   -  -   -  -   

43,515,100$     43,515,100$     -$    -$   -$   -$    

*Per investment policy (Gov't code section 53601)

Investment Type

Ratings as of Year-End (SP / MDY)
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Credit ratings of investment and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2020, are summarized below: 

Fair Value
Minimum Legal 

Rating*
Exempt from 

rating A-1 / P-1 A1 / AA+ A1 / A+ A2 / A

Cal Trust Investment Fund 3,760$     None 3,760$     -$    -$   -$   -$    
Local Agency Investment Fund 205,239   None 205,239   -  -   -  -   
Ventura County Investment Pool 42,831,225   None 42,831,225   -  -   -  -   

43,040,224$     43,040,224$     -$    -$   -$   -$    

*Per investment policy (Gov't code section 53601)

Ratings as of Year-End (SP / MDY)

Investment Type

Concentration of credit risk – Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of The 
Plan’s investment in a single issuer. GCHP’s Policy does not contain any specific provisions to limit exposure to 
concentration of credit risk, but conforms to the California Government Code sections 53601 to meet the percentage 
limits of investment holdings.  

The Plan’s percentage of portfolio as of June 30, 2021, is summarized below: 

Issuer Fair Value
Percentage of 

Portfolio

Cal Trust Investment Fund Wells Fargo 3,771$   0.0%
Local Agency Investment Fund State of California Treasurer 206,976  0.5%
Ventura County Investment Pool County of Ventura Treasurer 43,304,353  99.5%

Total Funds Available for Investments 43,515,100$     100.0%

Investment Type

The Plan’s percentage of portfolio as of June 30, 2020, is summarized below: 

Issuer Fair Value
Percentage of 

Portfolio

Cal Trust Investment Fund Wells Fargo 3,760$   0.0%
Local Agency Investment Fund State of California Treasurer 205,239  0.5%
Ventura County Investment Pool County of Ventura Treasurer 42,831,225  99.5%

Total Funds Available for Investments 43,040,224$     100.0%

Investment Type

Investments – GCHP categorizes its fair value investments within the fair value hierarchy established by U.S. 
GAAP. The hierarchy for fair value measurements is based upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation of an 
asset or liability as of the measurement date. 

Level 1 – Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for an asset or liability, 
either directly or indirectly. 

Level 3 – Significant unobservable inputs. 
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The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments at fair value on a recurring basis 
and recognized in the accompanying statements of net position, as well as the general classification of such 
instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy. 

External investment pools – CalTrust is organized as a Joint Powers Authority established by public agencies in 
California for the purpose of pooling and investing local agency funds. A Board of Trustees supervises and 
administers the investment program of the Trust. CalTrust has four pools: money market account, short-term, 
medium-term, and long-term. The Plan has deposits in the Short-Term Fund. Investments in CalTrust Short-Term 
Fund are highly liquid, as deposits can be converted to cash within 24 hours without loss of interest.  

The Plan is a voluntary participant in CalTrust. The Plan’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying 
financial statements at fair value based on the Plan’s pro rata share of the respective pool as reported by CalTrust. 
As of both June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Plan held approximately $4,000 in CalTrust. 

The California State Treasurer’s Office makes available the Local Agency Investment Fund (“LAIF”) through which 
local governments may pool investments. Each governmental entity may invest up to $65 million in the fund. 
Investments in the LAIF are highly liquid, as deposits can be converted to cash within 24 hours without loss of 
interest. The Plan is a voluntary participant in the LAIF. The fair value of the GCHP’s investments in the LAIF is 
reported in the accompanying financial statements based on the GCHP’s pro rata share of the fair value provided 
by the LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Plan held approximately $207,000 and 
$205,000 in LAIF, respectively. 

The Ventura County Investment Pool (“VCIP”) is available to local public governments, agencies, and school 
districts within Ventura County (the “County”). Wells Fargo Bank NA serves as custodian for the pool’s investments. 
The portfolio is typically comprised of U.S. agency securities and high-quality short-term instruments, resulting in a 
relatively short-weighted average maturity. Fair value calculations are based on market values provided by the 
County’s investment custodian. Investments in the VCIP are highly liquid, as deposits can be converted to cash 
within 24 hours without loss of interest. The Plan is a voluntary participant in the VCIP. The fair value of the GCHP’s 
investments in the VCIP is reported in the accompanying financial statements based on the GCHP’s pro rata share 
of the fair value provided by the VCIP for the entire VCIP portfolio. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Plan held 
approximately $43,304,000 and $42,831,000 in VCIP, respectively. 

The following table presents the fair value measurements of assets recognized in the accompanying statements of 
net position measured at fair value on a recurring basis and the level within the fair value hierarchy in which the fair 
value measurements fall: 
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The Plan had the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2021: 

Total

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Markets for 
Identical Assets 

(Level 1)

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2)

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs
 (Level 3)

Investments not subject to fair value hierarchy
Cal Trust Investment Fund 3,771$   
Local Agency Investment Fund 206,976  
Ventura County Investment Pool 43,304,353  

43,515,100$ 

Fair Value Measurements Using

The Plan had the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2020: 

Total

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Markets for 
Identical Assets 

(Level 1)

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2)

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs
 (Level 3)

Investments not subject to fair value hierarchy
Cal Trust Investment Fund 3,760$   
Local Agency Investment Fund 205,239  
Ventura County Investment Pool 42,831,225  

43,040,224$ 

Fair Value Measurements Using

NOTE 5 – ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENTS 

Conduent, Inc. (“Conduent”), formerly Affiliated Computer Services – GCHP entered into an agreement with 
Conduent on June 28, 2017, to provide certain operational services, for a two-year term with 4 to 6 month extensions 
beginning July 1, 2017. On May 1, 2019, GCHP and Conduent entered into a new agreement extending service 
through June 30, 2024. Included in the extension is a project to replace the existing technology platform with a new 
system and realign business processes. Compensation for these services is based on a per-member, per-month 
cost at varying membership levels. These costs are recorded as expenses in the period incurred. Total expenses 
for services provided for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, were approximately $19,370,000 and 
$19,994,000, respectively, and are reported in professional fees on the accompanying statements of revenues, 
expenses, and changes in net position. 
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OptumRx, Inc. (“Optum Rx”) – GCHP entered into a three-year agreement with Optum Rx, effective June 1, 2017, 
replacing Script Care as the provider of pharmacy administration and management services. The agreement was 
renewed effective July 1, 2020, and will expire on June 30, 2024. Optum Rx services are specific to the prescription 
benefit drug program for GCHP Medi-Cal beneficiaries. Total expenses for Optum Rx services were approximately 
$2,028,000 and $1,826,000 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and are included in other 
medical expenses on the accompanying statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 

Beacon Health Strategies, LLC (“Beacon Health Strategies”) – On April 14, 2014, GCHP entered into a two-
year agreement with Beacon Health Strategies to provide administrative services to arrange for and support the 
administration of behavioral health services for GCHP. The agreement with Beacon Health Strategies has been 
extended until February 28, 2022. Total expenses for Beacon Health Strategies were approximately $2,171,000 
and $1,948,000 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and are included in professional fees 
on the accompanying statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 
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NOTE 6 – CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity during the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, consisted of the following: 

Balance Balance
June 30, 2020 Increases Transfers Decreases June 30, 2021

Capital assets
Leasehold improvements 1,800,989$   3,987$   -$   -$   1,804,976$       
Software and equipment 1,789,959  100,114  - -  1,890,073  
Furniture and fixtures 1,207,135  -  -  9,685  1,197,450  

Total capital assets 4,798,083  104,101  - 9,685 4,892,499  

Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization for

Leasehold improvements 815,421  199,547  -  -  1,014,968  
Software and equipment 1,405,124  149,840  -  -  1,554,964  
Furniture and fixtures 967,210  164,955  - 8,070 1,124,095  

Total accumulated depreciation 3,187,755  514,342  - 8,070 3,694,027  

Total capital assets, net 1,610,328$   (410,241)$   -$   (1,615)$   1,198,472$   

Balance Balance
June 30, 2019 Increases Transfers Decreases June 30, 2020

Capital assets
Leasehold improvements 1,780,212$   20,777$   -$   -$   1,800,989$       
Software and equipment 1,450,920  339,039  - -  1,789,959  
Furniture and fixtures 1,156,938  50,197  - -  1,207,135  

Total capital assets 4,388,070  410,013  -  -  4,798,083  

Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization for

Leasehold improvements 583,928  231,493  -  -  815,421  
Software and equipment 1,328,325  76,799  -  -  1,405,124  
Furniture and fixtures 808,047  159,163  -  -  967,210  

Total accumulated depreciation 2,720,300  467,455  -  -  3,187,755  

Total capital assets, net 1,667,770$   (57,442)$   -$   -$   1,610,328$       
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NOTE 7 – MEDICAL CLAIMS LIABILITY 

Medical claims liability and capitation payable consists of the following: 

2021 2020

Claims payable or pending approval 29,923,759$       34,897,614$   
Capitation payable 26,699,447        18,217,262  
Provisions for claims incurred but not yet reported and other 126,960,643       51,769,339  
Directed payments to providers payable 16,883,016        15,929,522  

200,466,865$     120,813,737$   

June 30,

The cost of health care services is recognized in the period in which care is provided and includes an estimate of 
the cost of services that has been incurred but not yet reported. GCHP estimates accrued claims payable based on 
historical claims payments and other relevant information. Estimates are continually monitored and reviewed, and 
as settlements are made or estimates adjusted, differences are reflected in current operations. Such estimates are 
subject to the impact of changes in the regulatory environment and economic conditions. Given the inherent 
variability of such estimates, the actual liability could differ significantly from the amounts provided. While the 
ultimate amount of claims paid is dependent on future developments, management is of the opinion that the accrued 
medical claims payable is adequate. 
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The following is reconciliation of the medical claims liability and capitation payable activity for the years ended 
June 30: 

2021 2020

Medical claims liability and capitation payable at beginning of year 120,813,737$     117,466,780$   

Incurred
Current 827,996,130  780,676,321  
Prior 4,856,499  (10,164,318) 

Total incurred 832,852,629  770,512,003  

Paid
Current 669,483,942  670,892,743  
Prior 79,851,476  96,596,307  

Total paid 749,335,418  767,489,050  

Net balance at end of year 204,330,948  120,489,733  

Provider and reinsurance receivable of paid claims, beginning (948,446) (624,442) 
Provider and reinsurance receivable of paid claims, ending (2,915,637) 948,446  

Medical claims liability and capitation payable at end of year 200,466,865$     120,813,737$   

Amounts incurred related to prior years vary from previously estimated liabilities as the claims are ultimately 
adjudicated and paid. Liabilities at any year end are continually reviewed and re-estimated as information regarding 
actual claim payments becomes known. This information is compared to the originally established prior reporting 
period liability. Negative amounts reported for incurred, related to prior years, result from claims being adjudicated 
and paid for amounts less than originally estimated. Results for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, included 
an increase of prior year incurred of approximately $4,856,000 and a decrease of prior year incurred of 
approximately $10,164,000, respectively. Original estimates are increased or decreased as additional information 
becomes known regarding individual claims. Additional estimation uncertainty exists as of June 30, 2021, resulting 
from the impact of a new claims system implemented in May 2021. 
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NOTE 8 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Lease commitments – GCHP leases office space and equipment under long-term operating leases ending on 
various dates through March 2026. The total amount of rental payments due over the lease terms is being 
recognized as rent expense using the straight-line method over the term of the lease. Rent and lease expenses 
were approximately $1,371,000 and $1,423,000 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
Minimum annual rent and lease payments are as follows: 

Minimum Lease
Payments

Years Ending June 30,
2022 1,524,800$   
2023 1,556,410  
2024 1,588,917  
2025 1,633,606  
2026 1,250,872  
Thereafter  - 

7,554,605$   

Litigation – Through the course of ordinary business, the Plan became party to various administrative proceedings, 
mediations, and was party to various legal actions and subject to various claims arising as a result. During the year 
ended June 30, 2021, the Plan has successfully resolved some matters, and other administrative and legal matters 
are still proceeding. As a result of pending administrative and legal matters, the Plan has recorded a liability for 
these contingencies. It is the opinion of management that the ultimate resolution of such claims will not have a 
material adverse effect on the financial statements. 

Regulatory matters – The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and 
local governments. Violations of these laws and regulations could result in expulsion from government health care 
programs together with the imposition of significant fines and penalties. Management believes that GCHP is in 
compliance with fraud and abuse, as well as other applicable government laws and regulations. Compliance with 
such laws and regulations can be subject to future government review a interpretation as well as regulatory actions 
unknown or unasserted at this time. 

In September 2021, GCHP received a request from DHCS to submit a corrective action plan related to claims 
processing backlogs due to a new claims processing system implementation during the year ended June 30, 2021. 
While the ultimate outcome of this matter is not known, it is the opinion of management that the ultimate resolution 
of this matter will not have a material adverse effect on the financial statements. 

Patient protection and Affordable Care Act – The ACA allowed for the expansion of Medicaid members in the 
State of California. Any future federal or state changes in eligibility requirements or federal and state funding could 
have an impact on the Plan. With the changes in the executive branch, the future of PPACA and impact of future 
changes in Medicaid to the Plan is uncertain at this time.  
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AGENDA ITEM NO. 8 

TO: Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission 

FROM:  Kashina Bishop, Chief Financial Officer 

DATE: October 25, 2021 

SUBJECT: September 2021 Fiscal Year to Date Financials  

SUMMARY: 

Staff is presenting the attached September 2021 fiscal year-to-date (“FYTD”) financial 
statements of Gold Coast Health Plan (“GCHP”) for review and approval. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

The staff has prepared the unaudited 2022 FYTD financial packages, including 
statements of financial position, statement of revenues and expenses, changes in net 
assets, statement of cash flows and schedule of investments and cash balances.   

Financial Overview: 

GCHP experienced a gain of $6.3 million for the month of September 2021 and is 
favorable to the budget for September 2021 by $5.4M.  The favorability is due to timing 
of administrative and project expenses, and medical expense estimates that are currently 
less than budget.   

Solvency Action Plan (SAP): 

GCHP is on the right trajectory to ensure its long-term viability.  That said, GCHP remains 
in a vulnerable position and must continue to build reserves to levels that are, at minimum, 
consistent with the Commission policy.  To that end, your management team remains 
focused on the next phases of the SAP and that solvency-related actions are 
implemented in a manner that respects the provider community and mitigates any 
adverse impact on our providers or members.   

The SAP is comprised of three main categories:  cost of healthcare, internal control 
improvements and contract strategies.  The primary objectives within each of these 
categories is as follows: 

1. Cost of healthcare – to ensure care is being provided at the optimal place of
service which both reduces costs and improves member experience.
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2. Internal control improvements – to ensure GCHP is operating effectively and
efficiently which will result in administrative savings and safeguard against
improper claim payments.

3. Contracting strategies – to ensure that GCHP is reimbursing providers within
industry standard for a Medi-Cal managed care plan and moving toward value- 
based methodologies.

The management team concluded several months ago that it is imperative that GCHP 
have a keen focus on fundamental activities that are essential to its providers and 
members, most notably the system conversion and implementation of CalAim.  This has 
and will continue to cause some delay in implementing some of the below initiatives, but 
the focus and hard work remains particularly on the efforts to tighten internal controls.  
During the system conversion, staff was able to complete two significant internal control 
improvements: 

1. Appropriate diversion of ED claims to California Children’s Services; these
services are carved out of GCHP.

2. Implementation of additional claims edit system checks which will minimize
payment errors.

Category Current Focus Annualized 
impact in 
savings 

Cost of 
Healthcare 

LANE – avoidable ER analysis TBD 

Pro-active transplant management approach TBD 

Analysis of leakage to out of area providers TBD 

Internal Control 
Improvements* 

Review of provider contracts for language 
interpretation and validation 

N/A 

Develop revised provider contract templates 
and a standard codified DOFR template 

N/A 

Improve quality and completeness of encounter 
data 

Revenue 
implications 

Capitation reconciliation at member level Revenue 

RDT data improvement Revenue 

Contracting 
Strategies 

Expansion of capitation arrangements Required TNE 
and risk 
reductions 

LANE/HCPCS analysis TBD 

Outlier rate analysis TBD 

* this is a sub-set of the internal control improvements with direct impacts to the SAP and
providers.  Staff will periodically update the Commission on the comprehensive list.
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Financial Report: 
 
GCHP is reporting net gains of $6.3 million for the month of September 2021.  
 

September 2021 FYTD Highlights: 
 

1. Net gain of $16.4 million, a $13.2 million favorable budget variance. 
2. FYTD net revenue is $249.9 million, $233,600 over budget.   
3. FYTD Cost of health care is $220.0 million, $9.8 million under budget.  
4. The medical loss ratio is 88.0% of revenue, 4.0% less than the budget.   
5. FYTD administrative expenses are $13.5 million, $3.2 million under budget. 
6. The administrative cost ratio is 5.4%, 1.3% under budget.   
7. Current membership for September is 224,580.   
8. Tangible Net Equity is $122.2 million which represents approximately 48 days of 

operating expenses in reserve and 333% of the required amount by the State. 

Note: To improve comparative analysis, GCHP is reporting the budget on a flexible basis 
which allows for updated revenue and medical expense budget figures consistent with 
membership trends. 

 

 

Page 127 of 189 Return to Agenda



 

 
 
 
Revenue  
Net Premium revenue is $249.9 million; a $233,600 and .1% favorable budget variance.   

 
Health Care Costs  
FYTD Health care costs are $220.0 million; a $9.8 million and 4% favorable budget 
variance.   

Medical expenses are calculated through a predictive model which examines the timing 
of claims receipt and claims payments.  It is referred to as “Incurred but Not Paid” (IBNP) 
and is a liability on the balance sheet.  On the balance sheet, this calculation is a 
combination of the Incurred but Not Reported and Claims Payable.   

Due to the system conversion, staff does not yet have an accurate data file to complete 
the estimate with the same level of detail as has been the historical process.  One of the 
issues being addressed is discrepancies in the mapping of data to the correct category 
of service.  This impacts staff’s ability to research actual and budget variances at the 
category of service level.  At a high level, medical expenses have remained consistent 
with prior months and are running below budget expectations which were conservative. 

High level trends on a per member per month (PMPM) basis for the major categories of 
service are as follows: 
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1. All categories of service 

 

 

2. Inpatient hospital costs  
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3. Long term care (LTC) expenses  

 

 

4. Outpatient expenses  
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5. Emergency Room expenses  

 

 
6. Mental and behavioral health services 

 

 

Administrative Expenses 

The administrative expenses are currently running within amounts allocated to 
administration in the capitation revenue from the State.  In addition, the ratio is 
comparable to other public health plans in California.   

For the fiscal year to date through September 2021, administrative costs were $13.5 
million and $3.2 million under budget.  As a percentage of revenue, the administrative 
cost ratio (or ACR) was 5.4% versus 6.7% for budget.  
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The following are drivers of administrative expense favorability: 

• Enterprise Project Portfolio:  timing of consulting services related to multiple 
projects (~$1.2M) 

• Salaries, Wages & Employee Benefits:  primarily related to timing of filling open IT 
positions (~$559K) 

• Outside Services:  favorability of Conduent expenses due to membership lower 
than projected and lower fulfillment related charges (~$648K) 

• Professional Services:  timing of employee recruitment in budget (~$219K), 
favorable consulting expenses related to timing ($435K) 

• Occupancy, Supplies, Insurance and Other:  timing of software and non-capital 
equipment purchases and implementation (~$353K) 

 
Cash and Short-Term Investment Portfolio  
At September 30 the Plan had $244.5 million in cash and short-term investments. The 
investment portfolio included Ventura County Investment Pool $18.3 million; LAIF CA 
State $25.2 million; the portfolio yielded a rate of 2.5%. 
 

 

Market Value* 

September 30, 2021 Account Type

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
1

25,207,145$              investment

Ventura County Investment Pool
2

18,338,883$              investment

CalTrust 3,773$                       short-term investment

Bank of West 172,981,649$            money market account

Pacific Premier 26,412,436$              operating accounts

Mechanics Bank
3

1,540,672$                operating accounts

Petty Cash 500$                          cash

Investments and monies held by GCHP 244,485,057$           

Sep-21 FYTD 21-22

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

25,207,145$       206,976$                   

-                      25,000,000                

Quarterly Interest Received -                      414                            

Quarterly Interest Adjustment -                      (245)                           

25,207,145$       25,207,145$              

-                      -                             

Ventura County Investment Pool

18,338,883$       43,304,353$              

-                      (25,000,000)               

Interest Received -                      34,530                       

18,338,883$       18,338,883$              Current Market Value

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS AND CASH BALANCES

Current Market Value

Beginning Balance

Transfer of funds to LAIF

Beginning Balance

Transfer of Funds from Ventura County 

Investment Pool
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Medi-Cal Receivable  
 
At September 30 the Plan had $103.8 million in Medi-Cal Receivables due from the 
DHCS.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff requests that the Commission approve the September 2021 financial package. 
 

CONCURRENCE: 
 
N/A 
 

ATTACHMENT: 
 
September 2021 Financial Package 
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09/30/21 08/31/21 07/31/21

ASSETS

Current Assets:    
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents          200,935,258          189,665,301          181,564,813 
Total Short-Term Investments 43,549,801           43,549,800           43,532,535           
Medi-Cal Receivable 103,846,657         109,348,556         106,844,162         
Interest Receivable 91,238                  86,401                  99,015                  
Provider Receivable 1,456,069             1,025,836             2,161,503             
Other Receivables 6,551,713             6,551,713             6,320,713             
Total Accounts Receivable 111,945,677         117,012,506         115,425,393         

Total Prepaid Accounts 3,112,850             3,160,044             3,033,715             
Total Other Current Assets 156,289                153,789                153,789                
Total Current Assets 359,699,874         353,541,441         343,710,244         

Total Fixed Assets 1,346,277             1,389,413             1,173,684             

Total Assets 361,046,151$       354,930,854$       344,883,929$       

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:
Incurred But Not Reported 113,127,383$       125,246,814$       133,395,431$       
Claims Payable 10,081,989           7,380,747             9,818,017             
Capitation Payable 24,190,667           25,377,384           25,368,834           
Physician Payable 19,916,310           18,406,909           26,530,179           
DHCS - Reserve for Capitation Recoup 14,922,016           14,936,921           6,027,119             
Accounts Payable 2,255,970             759,926                190,618                
Accrued ACS 3,478,638             3,498,567             3,355,584             
Accrued Provider Reserve 1,631,919             1,560,330             1,489,014             
Accrued Pharmacy 22,669,416           21,839,389           14,017,265           
Accrued Expenses 2,103,839             2,180,746             2,166,098             
Accrued Premium Tax 21,565,800           14,377,200           7,188,600             
Accrued Payroll Expense 1,974,868             2,544,532             2,341,053             
Total Current Liabilities 237,918,815         238,109,464         231,887,813         

Long-Term Liabilities:
Other Long-term Liability-Deferred Rent 963,279                972,873                982,468                
Deferred Revenue -  Long Term Portion -                        -                        -                        
Notes Payable -                        -                        -                        
Total Long-Term Liabilities 963,279                972,873                982,468                

Total Liabilities 238,882,094         239,082,337         232,870,280         

Net Assets:
Beginning Net Assets 105,714,877         105,714,877         105,714,877         
Total Increase / (Decrease in Unrestricted Net Assets) 16,449,181           10,133,640           6,298,772             

Total Net Assets 122,164,057         115,848,517         112,013,649         

Total Liabilities & Net Assets 361,046,151$       354,930,854$       344,883,929$       

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS September 2021 FYTD 20-21

Cash Flows Provided By Operating Activities
Net Income (Loss) 6,315,540$           16,449,181$         

Adjustments to reconciled net income to net cash 
provided by operating activities

Depreciation on fixed assets 39,930 106,696 
Disposal of fixed assets - - 
Amortization of discounts and premium - - 

Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilites
Accounts Receivable 5,066,829             (576,554) 
Prepaid Expenses 44,695 (1,164,188)            
Accrued Expense and Accounts Payable 1,706,662             412,842 
Claims Payable 3,023,926             3,726,157             
MCO Tax liablity 7,188,600             2,156,580             
IBNR (12,119,431) (13,833,260)          

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 11,266,751           7,277,455             

Cash Flow Provided By Investing Activities
Proceeds from Restricted Cash & Other Assets
Proceeds from Investments (0) (34,701) 
Purchase of Property and Equipment 3,206 (254,501) 

Net Cash (Used In) Provided by Investing Activities 3,205 (289,202) 

Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 11,269,957           6,988,253             
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Period 189,665,301         193,947,005         
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Period 200,935,258         200,935,258         

Page 138 of 189 Return to Agenda



S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
2
1

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
5
, 

2
0

2
1

K
a
s
h
in

a
 B

is
h
o
p

C
h
ie

f 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
O

ff
ic

e
r

Page 139 of 189 Return to Agenda



Fi
n

an
ci

al
 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
:

SE
P

TE
M

B
ER

 N
ET

 G
A

IN
$

 6
.3

 M

FY
TD

 N
ET

 G
A

IN
$

1
6

.4
 M

TN
E 

is
 $

1
2

2
.2

 M
 a

n
d

 3
3

3
%

 o
f 

th
e 

m
in

im
u

m
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

M
ED

IC
A

L 
LO

SS
 R

AT
IO

8
8

%

A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TI

V
E 

R
A

TI
O

5
.4

%

Page 140 of 189 Return to Agenda



So
lv

en
cy

 A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
Ta

rg
et

:  
TN

E 
%

 =
 4

0
0

-5
0

0
%

 o
f 

R
eq

u
ir

ed

A
u

gu
st

 2
0

2
0

TN
E=

1
9

2
%

M
ar

ch
 2

0
2

1
TN

E=
2

4
6

%

Ju
n

e 
2

0
2

1
TN

E=
2

7
8

%

Se
p

t 
2

0
2

1
TN

E=
3

3
3

%

Page 141 of 189 Return to Agenda



FY
 2

0
2

0
-2

1
 A

u
d

it
ed

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

ts

P
re

lim
in

ar
y

A
u

d
it

ed

FY
 2

0-
21

A
d

ju
st

m
en

ts
FY

 2
0-

21

N
et

 C
ap

it
at

io
n

 R
ev

en
u

e 
91

7,
97

2,
89

7
$ 

   
(1

,3
15

,2
68

)
$ 

   
 

91
6,

65
7,

62
9

$ 
   

 

H
ea

lt
h

 C
ar

e 
C

o
st

s
84

5,
11

9,
01

6
   

   
 

(6
,0

30
,1

51
)

   
   

 
83

9,
08

8,
86

6
   

   
  

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
Ex

p
en

se
s

49
,6

37
,6

03
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

49
,6

37
,6

03
   

   
   

 

N
o

n
-O

p
er

at
in

g 
R

ev
en

u
e/

(E
xp

en
se

)
46

0,
44

4
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

46
0,

44
4

   
   

   
   

   

To
ta

l I
n

cr
ea

se
/(

D
ec

re
as

e)
 in

 N
et

 A
ss

et
s

23
,6

76
,7

24
$ 

   
   

4,
71

4,
88

2
$ 

   
   

28
,3

91
,6

05
$ 

   
   

 

G
C

H
P 

TN
E

10
0,

99
9,

99
4

$ 
   

10
5,

71
4,

87
7

$ 
   

 

R
eq

u
ir

ed
 T

N
E

36
,3

13
,9

08
$ 

   
   

36
,0

72
,7

02
$ 

   
   

 

%
 o

f 
R

eq
u

ir
ed

27
8%

29
3%

Page 142 of 189 Return to Agenda



N
et

 P
re

m
iu

m
 r

ev
en

u
e

 is
 $

2
4

9
.9

 m
ill

io
n

, o
ve

r 
b

u
d

ge
t 

b
y 

$
2

3
3

,6
0

0
. 

•
Fa

vo
ra

b
le

 C
Y 

2
0

2
1

 r
at

es
.

G
o

o
d

 n
e

w
s!

  R
ec

ei
ve

d
 d

ra
ft

 C
Y 

2
0

2
2

 r
at

es
 w

h
ic

h
 

re
p

re
se

n
te

d
 a

 5
.7

%
 in

cr
ea

se
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

 J
an

u
ar

y 
1

, 2
0

2
2

 
(1

.3
%

 h
ig

h
e

r 
th

an
 b

u
d

ge
t)

. 

R
ev

en
u

e

Page 143 of 189 Return to Agenda



C
Y 

2
0

2
2

 R
at

es

B
y
 C

a
te

g
o

ry
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 w

it
h
in

 e
a
c
h
 

A
id

 C
a
te

g
o

ry
:

e
.g

. 
 C

h
ild

O
u

tp
a

ti
e

n
t 

F
a
c
ili

ty

*
U

n
it
 C

o
s
ts

*
U

ti
liz

a
ti
o
n

*
E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y

A
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

*
M

e
d
i-

C
a
l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
C

h
a

n
g
e

s

B
a
s
e
 P

M
P

M
 M

e
d
ic

a
l 

C
o
m

p
o
n
e

n
t 

+

A
d

m
in

 +
 M

a
rg

in

H
e

a
lt
h

 P
la

n
 B

a
se

 
P

e
ri
o

d
 C

o
st

s 
P

M
P

M
$
 

(C
re

d
ib

ili
ty

 
A

d
ju

st
e

d
)

Tr
e

n
d

 F
a

c
to

r 
A

d
ju

st
m

e
n

ts
C

a
p

it
a

ti
o

n
 R

a
te

 
P

M
P

M
$

C
a
le

n
d
a
r 

Y
e
a
r 

2
0
1
9

T
re

n
d
e
d

C
Y

 2
0
2
2
 R

a
te

Page 144 of 189 Return to Agenda



C
Y 

2
0

2
2

 R
at

es
C

Y 
20

19
 B

as
e 

M
e

d
ic

al
 E

xp
en

se
s

63
4,

70
8,

07
5

$ 
   

   
   

  

Tr
en

d
 A

d
ju

st
m

en
ts

72
,6

38
,2

19
$ 

   
   

   
   

 

Pr
o

gr
am

 C
h

an
ge

s/
C

O
V

ID
/G

EM
T

9,
72

5,
35

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   

Ef
fi

ci
en

cy
 A

d
ju

st
m

en
ts

(5
,3

35
,0

36
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

Po
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 A

cu
it

y 
A

d
ju

st
m

en
t

(4
,7

30
,5

12
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

M
at

er
n

it
y 

C
ar

ve
-O

u
t

(2
3,

47
8,

19
7)

$ 
   

   
   

   

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
C

o
m

p
o

n
en

t
66

,0
81

,4
86

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

R
is

k 
M

ar
gi

n
15

,2
98

,1
51

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

To
ta

l B
as

e 
Fu

n
d

in
g*

76
4,

90
7,

53
7

$ 
   

   
   

  

* 
Ex

cl
u

d
es

 s
u

p
p

le
m

en
ta

l a
n

d
 d

ir
ec

te
d

 p
ay

m
en

ts
.

Page 145 of 189 Return to Agenda



M
em

b
er

sh
ip

 t
re

n
d

s

Page 146 of 189 Return to Agenda



M
ed

ic
al

 E
xp

en
se

 

FY
TD

 H
ea

lt
h

 c
ar

e 
co

st
s 

ar
e 

$
2

2
0

.0
 m

ill
io

n
 a

n
d

 $
9

.8
 

m
ill

io
n

 a
n

d
 4

%
 u

n
d

er
 b

u
d

ge
t.

 M
e

d
ic

al
 lo

ss
 r

at
io

 is
 8

8
.0

%
, 

a 
4

.0
%

 b
u

d
ge

t 
va

ri
an

ce
.  

Page 147 of 189 Return to Agenda



In
cu

rr
ed

 B
u

t 
N

o
t 

Pa
id

 (
IB

N
P

) 
M

ed
ic

al
 

Ex
p

en
se

 R
es

er
ve

 –
p

o
st

 s
ys

te
m

 
co

n
ve

rs
io

n
A

cc
u

ra
te

ly
 c

al
cu

la
ti

n
g 

th
e

 r
e

se
rv

e
 b

e
co

m
e

s 
m

o
re

 c
h

al
le

n
gi

n
g:

1
.

H
is

to
ri

ca
l l

ag
 b

et
w

ee
n

 w
h

en
 a

 s
er

vi
ce

 is
 p

e
rf

o
rm

ed
 a

n
d

 w
h

en
 t

h
e 

cl
ai

m
s 

is
 p

ai
d

 
is

 d
is

ru
p

te
d

2
.

D
o

 n
o

t 
h

av
e 

an
 a

cc
u

ra
te

 d
at

a 
fi

le
 –

im
p

ac
ti

n
g 

ca
te

go
ry

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e 

o
n

 f
in

an
ci

al
s

Page 148 of 189 Return to Agenda



In
cu

rr
ed

 B
u

t 
N

o
t 

Pa
id

 (
IB

N
P

) 
M

ed
ic

al
 

Ex
p

en
se

 R
es

er
ve

 –
p

o
st

 s
ys

te
m

 
co

n
ve

rs
io

n

Page 149 of 189 Return to Agenda



In
cu

rr
ed

 B
u

t 
N

o
t 

Pa
id

 (
IB

N
P

) 
M

ed
ic

al
 E

xp
en

se
 R

es
er

ve

Page 150 of 189 Return to Agenda



Fi
n

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
Su

m
m

ar
y

FY
TD

FY
TD

B
u

d
ge

t

Se
p

te
m

b
er

 2
02

1
A

ct
u

al
B

u
d

ge
t

V
ar

ia
n

ce

N
et

 C
ap

it
at

io
n

 R
ev

en
u

e 
84

,0
49

,2
06

$ 
   

   
24

9,
88

3,
73

2
$ 

 
24

9,
65

0,
13

2
$ 

   
 

23
3,

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 

H
ea

lt
h

 C
ar

e 
C

o
st

s
73

,1
66

,5
05

   
   

   
22

0,
00

0,
00

9
   

 
22

9,
80

2,
12

6
   

   
  

(9
,8

02
,1

17
)

   
   

   
   

   

  M
ed

ic
al

 L
o

ss
 R

at
io

88
.0

%
92

.0
%

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
Ex

p
en

se
s

4,
58

1,
13

0
   

   
   

  
13

,4
70

,6
75

   
   

 
16

,6
46

,5
20

   
   

   
 

(3
,1

75
,8

45
)

   
   

   
   

   

  A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
R

at
io

5.
4%

7.
3%

N
o

n
-O

p
er

at
in

g 
R

ev
en

u
e/

(E
xp

en
se

)
13

,8
04

   
   

   
   

   
 

35
,6

83
   

   
   

   
  

90
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
(5

4,
31

6)
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

To
ta

l I
n

cr
ea

se
/(

D
ec

re
as

e)
 in

 N
et

 A
ss

et
s

6,
31

5,
37

6
$ 

   
   

  
16

,4
48

,7
31

$ 
   

3,
29

1,
48

6
$ 

   
   

   
13

,1
57

,2
45

$ 
   

   
   

  

C
as

h
 a

n
d

 In
ve

st
m

en
ts

24
4,

48
5,

05
9

$ 
   

G
C

H
P 

TN
E

12
2,

16
4,

05
7

$ 
   

R
eq

u
ir

ed
 T

N
E

36
,6

44
,2

65
$ 

   
   

%
 o

f 
R

eq
u

ir
ed

33
3%

Page 151 of 189 Return to Agenda



Q
u
e

s
ti
o
n

s
?

S
ta

ff
 r

e
q

u
e

s
ts

 t
h
e

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e

 t
h
e

 u
n
a

u
d

it
e

d
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

2
1

.

Page 152 of 189 Return to Agenda



AGENDA ITEM NO. 9 

TO: Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission 

FROM: Margaret Tatar, Chief Executive Officer 

DATE:  October 25, 2021 

SUBJECT: Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Report 

I. EXTERNAL AFFAIRS:

A. Federal

Congressional Action (as of October 11, 2021) 

H.R.5376 - Build Back Better Act (Link) 
Congress is weighing in on President Biden’s agenda. While much of his plan rests in the 
hands of a few senators, the cornerstone of the President’s plan, known as the “Build Back 
Better Act,” makes historic investments in families, workers, and health. 

Key Health Provisions: 
The Build Back Better Act works to expand access to health care for Americans, with an end 
goal of making health care more affordable. The key areas of the act’s health initiatives are: 

• Prescription Drug Pricing

• Medicare Dental, Vision, and Hearing Coverage

• Medicaid Coverage Gap

• Affordable Care Act Reinsurance Program

• Home- and Community-Based Services

• Children’s Health Insurance Program (CHIP) and Medicaid

• Maternal Health

• Justice-Involved Populations

• Public Health Infrastructure, Workforce, and Preparedness
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B. State

Executive and DHCS Action (as of Oct. 11, 2021) 

APL 21-012 Enhanced Care Management (ECM) Requirements (Sept. 15, 2021) 

In preparation for California Advancing and Innovating Medi-Cal (CalAIM) and the launch of 
ECM and Community Supports (formerly known as In Lieu of Services, or ILOS), on Jan. 1, 
2022, DHCS released an ECM all-plan letter (APL) regarding provisions of the ECM benefit. 

GCHP recently submitted its Model of Care (MOC). DHCS will use GCHP’s MOC to 
determine its readiness to meet the ECM and CS requirements laid out in this APL and other 
guidance documents. After DHCS reviews and approves GCHP’s submissions, the ECM 
benefit and CS program will be implemented starting Jan. 1, 2022. GCHP will continue to 
review guidance from DHCS in the Mandates Implementation Committee starting on 
Tuesday, Oct. 26, 2021. 

Executive and DHCS Action (as of Oct. 11, 2021) 

APL 21-013 Dispute Resolution Process Between Mental Health Plans and Medi-Cal 
Managed Care Health Plans (Oct. 4, 2021) 

This APL provides guidance to managed care plans on how to submit a service delivery 
dispute to DHCS when the dispute cannot be resolved at the local level with mental health 
plans. The APL updates the dispute resolution process, expedited process, and clarifies 
fiscal responsibilities.  

This APL supersedes APL 15-007 and will require revisions of internal policies and 
procedures. The Mandates Implementation Committee will review the APL and discuss 
required changes. New and revised polices will be brought to GCHP’s Policy Review 
Committee prior to the January implementation date.  

State Legislature Bills (as of Oct. 11, 2021) 

October 10, 2021, was the last day for bills to be signed, approved without signing, or vetoed 
by the governor. The legislature can now override a veto with a two-thirds vote in each 
house. 
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Behavioral Health Implications 

SB 221 Health Care Coverage: Timely Access to Care 
Status: Chaptered (approved by the Legislature and 
signed by the governor) 
 
Summary: Would codify current timely access standards 
requiring the Department of Managed Health Care 
(DMHC) and the Department of Insurance to ensure 
that contracted providers and health networks schedule 
initial appointments within specified time frames of a 
beneficiary’s request. Would expand current standards 
to also require follow-up appointments with a non-
physician mental health or substance use disorder 
provider to be scheduled within 10 business days of a 
previous appointment related to an ongoing course of 
treatment. 

Possible additional oversight of 
behavioral health appointments 
and payments for out-of-network 
care when timely access 
standards are not met. The 10-
day follow-up appointment 
provision in the bill would close a 
loophole in state law and 
regulations and establish a timely 
access standard for follow-up 
appointments for mental health 
and substance use disorder 
treatment. 

SB 48 Medi-Cal: Annual Cognitive Health Assessment. 
Status: Chaptered (approved by the Legislature and 
signed by the governor) 
 
This bill would expand the schedule of benefits to 
include an annual cognitive health assessment for Medi-
Cal beneficiaries who are 65 years of age or older if 
they are otherwise ineligible for a similar assessment as 
part of an annual wellness visit under the Medicare 
Program. The bill would make a Medi-Cal provider 
eligible to receive the payment for this benefit only if 
they comply with certain requirements, including 
completing cognitive health assessment training. The 
bill would require the department to determine specified 
training and validated tools in consultation with 
prescribed entities, including the state Department of 
Public Health’s Alzheimer’s Disease Program. By Jan. 
1, 2024, and every two years thereafter, the bill would 
require the department to consolidate and analyze data 
related to the benefit, and to post information on the 
utilization of, and payment for, the benefit on its website. 
The bill would authorize the department to implement 
these provisions by various means, including all-plan 
letters, without taking regulatory action, and would 
condition the implementation of these provisions to the 
extent federal approvals are obtained and federal 
financial participation is available. 
 
 

Adds a Medi-Cal benefit for an 
annual cognitive health 
assessment for Medi-Cal 
beneficiaries who are 65 years of 
age or older if they are otherwise 
ineligible for a similar assessment 
as part of an annual wellness visit 
under the Medicare Program. 
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Behavioral Health (cont’d) Implications 

AB 451 Health Care Facilities: Treatment of Psychiatric 
Emergency Medical Conditions. 
Status: Chaptered (approved by the Legislature and 
signed by the governor) 

This bill would require a psychiatric unit within a general 
acute care hospital, a psychiatric health facility, or an 
acute psychiatric hospital to accept the transfer of a 
person with a psychiatric emergency medical condition 
from a health facility that operates an emergency 
department and to provide emergency services and 
care to treat that person, regardless of whether the 
facility operates an emergency department, if specified 
criteria are met.  

No direct implications for GCHP. 

Health Equity Implications 

AB 941 Farmworker Assistance: Resource Centers. 
Status: Chaptered (approved by the Legislature and 
signed by the governor) 

This bill would require the department to establish a 
grant program for counties to establish farmworker 
resource centers that provide farmworkers and their 
families information and access to services related to, 
among other things, labor and employment rights, 
education, housing, immigration, and health and human 
services. The bill would make a county’s eligibility for 
funding under the grant program contingent upon the 
county working with local or statewide community-based 
organizations to develop the center, providing 25% of 
the center’s funding under the program, and requiring 
the center to provide services in at least English and 
Spanish, to provide an assessment of the population the 
center would serve, and to maintain a cost-effective 
database to track the number and type of calls received, 
referrals made, and claims filed, and to monitor local 
trends. The bill would require the department to 
convene and facilitate a workgroup to help inform the 
establishment and administration of the grant program, 
as specified. 

No direct implications for GCHP. 
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C. Community Relations – Sponsorships

GCHP continues to support Ventura County organizations through sponsorships. 
Sponsorships are awarded to community-based organizations in support of their efforts to 
serve Medi-Cal members and other vulnerable populations. The following organizations 
were awarded sponsorships in August: 

Health Information Exchange Implications 

SB 371 Health Information Technology 
Introduced: Feb. 10, 2021 
Status: Did not pass Assembly Health; moved to two-
year bill; aspects incorporated into the budget.     

Summary: Requires DHCS to apply for federal funding 
from the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 or the 
Medicaid Information Technology Architecture program 
to create a unified data exchange between the state 
government, health records systems, other data 
exchange networks and health care providers, including 
for the Medi-Cal program. Funds would also be used to 
provide grants and technical support to small provider 
practices, community health centers and safety net 
hospitals to expand the use of health information 
technology and connect to exchanges. 

This bill could facilitate the 
creation of a statewide health 
information exchange (HIE) to 
enable data exchanges related to 
all health plan members. An HIE 
would support the electronic 
exchange of health information 
among, and aggregate and 
integrate data from, multiple 
sources within our service area. 

Language in this bill is supported 
by the Health Trailer Bill AB 133. 

School Based Services Implications 

AB 563 School-based Health Programs  
Introduced: Feb. 11, 2020 
Status: Did not pass Senate Education and Health 
Committees; moved to two-year bill.     

Summary: Creates the Office of School-Based Health 
Programs within the California Department of Education 
(CDE), no later than July 1, 2022, to administer health 
programs, including the Local Education Agencies 
Medi-Cal Billing Option Program, and Early and Periodic 
Screening, Diagnostic, and Treatment (ESPDT) 
services. Would also require the CDE to coordinate with 
DHCS and Local Education Agencies to increase 
access to and expand the scope of school-based Medi-
Cal programs. 

Potential increases to utilization 
for school-based early and 
preventative treatment programs, 
especially utilization of dental, 
health, and mental health 
programs, and school-based 
health centers. 
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D. Community Relations – Community Meetings and Events

In September, the Community Relations team participated in various collaborative 
meetings, community events, vaccine outreach, and council meetings. The purpose of 
these events is to connect with our community partners and members to engage in dialogue 
to bring awareness and services to the most vulnerable Medi-Cal beneficiaries.  

Organization Description Amount 

Brain Injury Center The Brain Injury Center's mission is to raise 
awareness, provide support/resources to 
survivors and caregivers, and improve their 
quality of life. The sponsorship supports the 
“Annual Evening of Magical Memories” 
fundraising event. 

$1,000 

TOTAL  $1,000 

Organization Description Date 

Ventura County 
Public Health 

Oxnard’s Southwinds Neighborhood and 
Ventura County Public Health partnered to 
host a COVID-19 Vaccine mobile clinic in 
Oxnard. 

Sept. 20, 2021 

Ventura County 
Public Health 

Westminster Free Clinic and Ventura County 
Public Health partnered to host a COVID-19 
Vaccine mobile clinic in Oxnard. 

Sept. 28, 2021 

Many Mansions The Big Idea Series: Homelessness Needs 
and Solutions is a quarterly collaborative 
meeting that discusses the needs of the 
homeless population and how to connect 
them to housing resources. 

Sept. 29, 2021 

Amigo Baby The Moving Forward in COVID-19: 
Working Together Conference addressed 
telehealth, the latest research on poverty and 
how it affects brain development, adult 
mental health and how it affects the 
development of a child, and what parents 
have experienced during the pandemic. 

Sept. 30, 2021 

Ventura County 
Public Health 

Vallarta Supermarkets and Ventura County 
Public Health partnered to host a COVID-19 
Vaccine mobile clinic in Oxnard. 

Oct. 1, 2021 

Ventura County 
Public Health 

Our Lady of Guadalupe Church and Ventura 
County Public Health partnered to host a 
COVID-19 Vaccine mobile clinic in Santa 
Paula. 

Oct. 3, 2021 
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On Sept. 28, 2021, we piloted our member vaccine incentive. We partnered with Ventura 
County Public Health to join the COVID-19 mobile vaccine clinics to incentivize our 
members to get vaccinated. Full-scope members who receive either their first or second 
vaccine received a $25 gift card. Below you will find our outreach data from Sept. 28, 
2021 through Oct. 3, 2021. 
 

Outreach Efforts 

 Spanish English Total 

Adult Member 4 2 6 

Child Member 5 6 11 

Senior Member 0 1 1 

Non-Member Adult 39 24 63 

Non-Member Child 0 5 5 

Non-Member Senior 0 2 2 

Total  
  

88 

 
 
 

Organization Description Date 

Simi Valley 
Neighborhood 
Council #2 

The Neighborhood Council offers residents 
an opportunity to voice their concerns, 
provide input to Simi Valley city officials, and 
develop ideas and recommendations on 
various topics.  

Oct. 12, 2021 

Ventura County 
Public Health 

Mary Star of the Sea Church and Ventura 
County Public Health partnered to host a 
COVID-19 Vaccine mobile clinic in Oxnard. 

Oct. 13, 2021 

Simi Valley 
Neighborhood 
Council #3 

The Neighborhood Council offers residents 
an opportunity to voice their concerns, 
provide input to Simi Valley city officials, and 
develop ideas and recommendations on 
various topics. 
 

Oct. 14, 2021 

Vista Real Charter 
High School 

Vista Real Charter High School hosted a 
COVID-19 Vaccine mobile clinic in Santa 
Paula. 

Oct. 16, 2021 

Ventura County 
Public Health 

Oxnard’s Lemonwood neighborhood and 
Ventura County Public Health hosted a 
COVID-19 Vaccine mobile clinic in Santa 
Paula. 

Oct. 22, 2021 

Total community meetings and events 11 
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Member Gift Card Distribution 

 Spanish English Total 

Adult Member 3 2 5 

Child Member 4 6 10 

Senior Member 0 0 0 

Total  
  

15 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E. Community Insight Coalition 
 
The Community Insight Coalition is an alliance group focused on health initiatives, 
community needs, and outreach efforts to ensure GCHP members receive high-quality 
care. The coalition will work to strengthen member accessibility to care and community 
resources and identify any barriers members may have. 
 
In November, the coalition will have its first meeting. We will provide an overview of 
GCHP’s services and the upcoming changes prompted by California Advancing and 
Innovating Medi-Cal (CalAIM). We also will discuss our member vaccine initiative and the 
different ways in which we can engage our members in that effort.  
 

F. Building Community Newsletter 
 

The Building Community Newsletter highlights GCHP’s contributions to the community, 
along with services and resources available to members. We are working on the next 
issue, which will include information about Medi-Cal Rx, Enhanced Care Management 
(ECM) / Community Supports (CS), vaccine outreach efforts, and much more. Click here 
to read the latest issue. 
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II. PLAN OPERATIONS

A. Membership

Notes: 
1. The 2021 Admin Member numbers will differ from the member numbers below

as both reports represent different snapshots of eligibility.
2. Unassigned members are those who have not been assigned to a PCP and have

30 days to choose one. If a member does not choose a PCP, GCHP will assign
one to them.

3. As of Oct. 18, 2021, GCHP has received enrollment forms for 1,078 members
for AHP. Going forward membership data will be included in the chart above,
which will be included in the upcoming COO report.

AmericasHealth Plan (AHP): 

In Sept. 2021, notices were sent to 70,892 GCHP member households, excluding 
Administrative members, informing them of the pilot program between AmericasHealth 
Plan (AHP) and GCHP and how to enroll (with affirmative opt-in). As of Oct. 18, 2021, 
GCHP has received enrollment forms for 1,078 members. The GCHP Member Services 
team is working on assigning those members to AHP as of the start of the pilot on Nov. 
1, 2021. After the significant efforts to build and launch this partnership and pilot, the 
GCHP team is excited to see and support the member interest and enrollment. 

There are three key oversight metrics that the GCHP team is monitoring as the AHP pilot 
enrollment develops: the provider of record, the method of transmission of the enrollment 
form, and the timeliness of AHP member materials sent to enrollees. 

1. Through Oct. 18, 2021, more than half (54%) of enrollments into the pilot were
requested by members currently associated in GCHP’s system with a provider
outside of Clinicas del Camino Real (CDCR). The chart below details the trend.
The GCHP team is working to understand non-CDCR interest in the pilot (which
can be due to multiple factors) and will provide follow-up reporting to the
commission.

2. Through Oct. 18, 2021, 75% of enrollment forms were received by mail and 25%
were received by fax. We are confirming whether the higher-than-expected rate of
faxed forms indicates that members are looking for support with the enrollment
process at the CDCR clinic sites.

VCMC CLINICAS CMH 
PCP- 

OTHER 
DIGNITY 

ADMIN 
MEMBERS 

NOT 
ASSIGNED 

KAISER AHP 

Aug-21 86,143 43,141 32,430 5,138 6,324 42,535 2,369 6,676 No Data 

Jul-21 85,488 42,747 32,130 5,114 6,298 16,880 3,714 6,584 No Data 

Jun-21 85,284 42,466 32,057 5,092 6,229 16,828 3,808 6,559 No Data 
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3. GCHP will include tracking of member notices in upcoming commission reports.

The pilot program was designed by AHP and GCHP – and approved by the Department 
of Health Care Services and the Department of Managed Health Care – as a provider-
plan partnership for advancing coordination and integration of care for enrollees. Though 
there are no additional benefits available to enrollees in this program, AHP and GCHP 
expected member interest due, in part, to the desire in the community and marketplace 
for the promise of greater access and coordination of patient-centered care. The GCHP 
team is working in full support of this goal and we will continue to carefully monitor and 
report on the progress. 

Administrative Member Details 

NOTE: 
The total number of members will not add up to the total admin members, as members 
can be represented in multiple boxes. For example, a member can be both Share of Cost 
and Out of Area. They are counted in both boxes. 

Category August 2021 

Total Administrative Members 41,465 

Share of Cost 1,710 

Long Term Care 783 

BCCTP 77 

Hospice (REST-SVS) xx 

Out of Area (Not in Ventura) 304 

Other Health Care 

DUALS (A, AB, ABD, AD, B, BD) 27,002 

Commercial OHI (Removing Medicare, Medicare Retro Billing and 
Null) 

10,133 
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METHODOLOGY 

Administrative members for this report were identified as anyone with active coverage 
with the benefit code ADM01. Additional criteria is as follows: 

1. Share of Cost (SOC-AMT) > zeros

a. AID Code is not 6G, 0P, 0R, 0E, 0U, H5, T1, T3, R1 or 5L

2. LTC members identified by AID codes 13, 23, and 63.

3. BCCTP members identified by AID codes 0M, 0N,0P, and 0W.

4. Hospice members identified by the flag (REST-SVS) with values of 900, 901, 910,

911, 920, 921, 930, or 931.

5. Out of Area members were identified by the following zip codes:

a. Ventura Zip Codes include: 90265, 91304, 91307, 91311, 91319-20, 91358-

62, 91377, 93000-12, 93015-16, 93020-24, 93030-36, 93040-44, 93060-66,

93094, 93099, 93225, 93252

b. If no residential address, the mailing address is used for this determination.

6. Other commercial insurance was identified by a current record of commercial

insurance for the member.

B. Provider Contracting Update:

GCHP works with providers through: 

1. Agreements: Newly negotiated contracts between GCHP and a provider.
2. Amendments: Updates to existing Agreements.
3. Interim Letters of Agreement (LOA): Agreements created for providers who

have applied for Medi-Cal enrollment but have not been approved. Once Medi-Cal
enrollment has been approved and the provider has been credentialed by GCHP,
the provider will enter into an Agreement with GCHP. Also used for out-of-area
providers who are Medi-Cal enrolled to meet DHCS out-of-network contracting
requirements.

4. Letters of Agreement (LOA): Member-specific negotiated agreements with non-
contracted GCHP providers.

From September 1-30, 2021, the following contracting actions were taken: 

Agreements - Total:  2 

Provider Specialty Action Taken 

Ruihai Liu dba Abundant 

Blessing Acupuncture 

Acupuncturist New contract to fill network gap 

for acupuncturists in East 

County. Provider is in Simi 

Valley. 
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Interim Letters of Agreement – Total:  2 

Provider Specialty Action Taken 

Simi Valley Surgery 

Center Inc. 

ASC The Contract Steering 

Committee approved the facility 

specializing in endoscopy 

services in East County for a 

contract. Interim LOA approved 

so facility can start seeing 

members effective Sept. 1, 

2021.  

CSI Medical Group Specialist Group Interim LOA needed to provide 

member access for 

dermatology. Office was 

pending 35 member visits due 

to lack of staffing; Dr Taft is 

currently pending credentialing 

so Interim LOA was put in 

place. 

Provider Specialty Action Taken 

Ardalan Alen Nourian MD 

APC 

Orthopedic Surgeon New contract to fill network gap 

for orthopedic surgeon in East 

County. Provider is in Thousand 

Oaks. 

Contract Amendments – Total:  4 

Provider Specialty Action Taken 

Community Memorial 

Health Systems 

Hospital Contract Contract update to include rev 

code 210 

Dignity Medical 

Foundation Amendment 

Four 

PCP Contract Update to the effective date of 

the PCP CAP rates 

County of Ventura Interim 

LOA Amendment 17 
Specialist Contract Addition of three physicians to 

the Interim LOA  

Ventura Orthopedic 

Medical Group Interim 

LOA Amendment 23 

Physical Therapy Addition of two therapists, 

termination of one therapist, one 

demographic update, and one 

name change for a therapist 
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Letters of Agreement – Total: 10 

Provider Specialty Action Taken 

Jason Gotlib/Stanford 
Medical Center 

Hospital LOA for member with Systemic 
Mastocytosis participating in 
2203 pioneer study for 
symptomatic patients. This is 
the only location for a clinical 
trial in California. 

Glendale Surgical 
Assoc/Pacific Coast OMS 

Specialty Group LOA for member diagnosed with 
Inflammatory Condition of Jaw 
in need of jaw surgery and tooth 
extraction – Physician’s 
Charges. 

Bente Kaiser M.D., Inc. 
dba All Womens Care 

Specialty Group LOA for high-risk baby that must 
be delivered at HPMC – 
Physician Charges. 

Hollywood Presbyterian 
Medical Center 

Hospital LOA for high-risk baby that must 
be delivered at HPMC – Facility 
Charges. 

William Brown, MD Surgeon LOA for member diagnosed with 
Unilateral Inguinal Hernia in 
need of hernia repair without 
mesh. 

Accredo Health Infusion Therapy Home infusion therapy for 
member 

Daniel Allison, MD Surgeon 

LOA for member in need of total 
knee arthroplasty revision. 
Member had private insurance 
when surgery was performed. 
Member became effective with 
GCHP on June 1, 2020. 

Acorn Stairlifts DME LOA for member diagnosed with 
unspecified abnormalities of gait 
and mobility in need of stairlift. 

Daniel Allison, MD Surgeon LOA for member in need of total 
knee arthroplasty revision. This 
LOA is for the Continuity of 
Care office visits with surgeon. 

Physicians Adventist 
Surgery Center 

Ambulatory Surgery 
Center 

LOA for member diagnosed with 
Inflammatory Condition of Jaw 
in need of jaw surgery and tooth 
extraction – Facility Charges. 
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Provider Additions: September 2021 – Total 49 

Provider Type In-Area Providers Out-of-Area Providers 

Midlevel 4 4 

PCP 1 0 

Specialist 18 21 

Specialist-Hospitalist 1 0 

Total 24 25 

Network Operations Department Projects 

Project Status 

BetterDoctor: BetterDoctor is a 
product that performs outreach 
to providers to gather and 
update provider demographic 
information. This is an ongoing 
initiative. 

Network Operations continues to meet weekly with 

Quest Analytics. In Sept. 2021, the team verified 

demographic information from BetterDoctor: 

1. 1,362 provider records were audited.

Provider Contracting and 
Credentialing Management 
System (PCCM): 

Working on upgrade to Symplr 
Payer (HTML5 version).  
Microsoft will no longer support 
the Silverlight platform on 
which the current PCCM 
operates. The upgrade is 
intended to go live in early 
November.  

The Network Operations team is working on the 
following processes: 

1. Desk-level Procedures

2. Data Corrections / Maintenance

3. Reporting requirements review and revisions

completed

4. Reviewing conversion from current Silverlight

browser to new eVIPs HTML5 version

5. Provider Directory online user acceptance

testing (UAT) ongoing

6. 274 extract testing ongoing

7. Supervising physician reporting completed

8. BetterDoctor extract requirements reviewed

and coordination with Quest for completion of

the extract completion
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Provider Terminations: September 2021 – Total 27 

 Provider Type In-Area Providers Out-of-Area Providers 

Midlevel 4 1 

PCP 0 0 

Specialist 14 7 

Specialist-Hospitalist 1 0 

Total 19 8 

The provider terminations have no impact on member access and availability. Of note, 
the specialist terminations are primarily associated with tertiary adult and pediatric 
academic medical centers where interns, residents, and fellows have finished with their 
clinical rotations. 

C. Compliance

Delegation Oversight 

GCHP is contractually required to perform oversight of all functions delegated through 
subcontracting arrangements. Oversight includes, but is not limited to: 

• Monitoring / reviewing routine submissions from subcontractor
• Conducting onsite audits
• Issuing a Corrective Action Plan (CAP) when deficiencies are identified

*Ongoing monitoring denotes the delegate is not making progress on a CAP issued
and/or audit results were unsatisfactory and GCHP is required to monitor the delegate
closely as it is a risk to GCHP when delegates are unable to comply.

Compliance will continue to monitor all CAPs. GCHP’s goal is to ensure compliance is 
achieved and sustained by its delegates. It is a DHCS requirement for GCHP to hold all 
delegates accountable. The oversight activities conducted by GCHP are evaluated during 
the annual DHCS medical audit. DHCS auditors review GCHP’s policies and procedures, 
audit tools, audit methodology, and audits conducted, and corrective action plans issued 
by GCHP during the audit period. DHCS continues to emphasize the high level of 
responsibility plans have in oversight of delegates. 

The following table includes audits and CAPs that are open and closed. Closed audits 
are removed after they are reported to the Commission. The table reflects changes in 
activity from Sept. 23 – Oct. 4, 2021.  
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Delegate Audit Year/Type Audit 
Status 

Date CAP 
Issued 

Date CAP 
Closed 

Notes 

Conduent 2017 Annual Claims 
Audit 

Open 12/28/2017 Under CAP Issue will not be 
resolved until 
new claims 

platform 
conversion 

Conduent 2021 Annual Claims 
Audit 

Open 07/21/2021 Under CAP 

Beacon 2020 Annual Claims 
Audit 

Open 4/21/2020 Under CAP 

Beacon 2021 Annual Claims 
Audit 

Open 5/06/2021 Under CAP 

VSP 2021 Annual Claims 
Audit 

In 
Progress 

Conduent 2020 Call Center Audit Open 1/20/2021 Under CAP 

VTS 2021 Call Center Audit Open 5/21/2021 Under CAP 

Beacon 2021 Call Center Audit Open 10/04/2021 Under CAP 

Privacy & Security CAPs 

Delegate CAP Type Status Date CAP 
Issued 

Date CAP 
Closed 

Notes 

Conduent Annual Vendor Security 
Risk Assessment 2020 

Closed 9/22/2020 7/09/2021 

Conduent Call Center Recordings 
Website 

Open 1/06/2021 N/A 

Operational CAPs 

Delegate CAP Type Status Date CAP 
Issued 

Date CAP 
Closed 

Notes 

Conduent February 2021 Service 
Level Agreements 

Open 4/15/2021 N/A 
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D. GRIEVANCE AND APPEALS

Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21
12-mo

Avg

0.16 0.15 0.14 0.11 0.16 0.14 0.21 0.14 0.15 0.13 0.23 0.22 0.16

Member Grievance per 1000 Members 

Delegate CAP Type Status Date CAP 
Issued 

Date CAP 
Closed 

Notes 

Conduent IKA Inventory, KWIK 
Queue, APL 21-002 

Open 4/28/2021 N/A IKA Inventory 
and KWIK 

Queue findings 
closed 

Conduent HSP Provider Portal Open 4/29/2021 N/A 

Conduent Call Center Stats and 
System Edits 

Open 5/25/2021 N/A 

Conduent IVR System Dropped 
Calls 

Open 5/27/2021 N/A 

Conduent May 2021 Service Level 
Agreements 

Open 7/07/2021 N/A 

Conduent August 2021 Service 
Level Agreements 

1. Authorization Files
2. Check Issuance

Errors
3. Member Handbook
4. Dropped Calls by

Call Center

Open 9/10/2021 N/A 
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Member Grievances per 1,000 Members 

The data show GCHP’s volume of grievances is low in comparison to the number of 
enrolled members. The 12-month average of enrollees is 219,719, with an average 
annual grievance rate of .16 grievances per 1,000 members.  

In September 2021, there were 52 member grievances. The top reason was 
“Inappropriate Care” due to outpatient physical health.  As previously reported, this is 
a new category created by DHCS in order to streamline the reporting categories for all 
the health plans. The previous category reported was “Quality of Care” due to 
inappropriate provider care.   

. 

Clinical Appeals per 1,000 Members 

The data comparison volume is based on the 12-month average of .09 appeals per 1,000 
members. 

In September 2021, GCHP received 16 clinical appeals: 
1. Six were overturned.
2. Four were upheld.
3. Five are still in review.
4. One was withdrawn.

RECOMMENDATION: 

Accept and File 

Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21
12-mo

Avg

0.06 0.13 0.09 0.09 0.07 0.07 0.05 0.09 0.14 0.08 0.10 0.07 0.09

Clinical Appeal per 1000 Members
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AGENDA ITEM NO. 10 

TO: Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission 

FROM: Nancy Wharfield, M.D., Chief Medical Officer 

DATE:  October 25, 2021 

SUBJECT:  Chief Medical Officer (CMO) Report 

Participation in B-Core Opportunity 

Gold Coast Health Plan (“GCHP”) staff are pleased to announce participation in the Birth-

Centered Outcomes Research Engagement in Medi-Cal (“B-Core”) Collaborative 

spearheaded by Priya Batra, M.D., Senior Medical Director for Inland Empire Health Plan 

(“IEHP”). This project, launching in October 2021 for a year-long duration, will focus on 

maternal mortality and severe maternal morbidity in the Medi-Cal population. 

The United States has the highest rate of maternal mortality among all industrialized nations 

and severe maternal morbidity often leads to maternal mortality.  Even though maternal 

mortality rates in California have declined by more than half over the past two decades, Medi-

Cal recipients represent a disproportionate burden of maternal morbidity and deaths.  Medi-

Cal members account for less than half of the births in the state but represent almost two-

thirds of pregnancy-related deaths.  The B-Core Collaborative seeks to engage Medi-Cal 

enrollees who have experienced pregnancy/birth with Medi-Cal perinatal providers, health 

plan administrators, and researchers in order to respond to priorities identified by Medi-Cal 

stakeholders. 

Kathy Touake, RN Case Manager, will represent GCHP in this collaborative effort across 

health plans, providers, and members. Additional B-Core collaborators include the National 

Committee for Quality Assurance (“NCQA”), the Department of Health Care Services 

(“DHCS”), California Healthcare Foundation (“CHCF”), Institute for Medicaid Innovation, and 

the California Maternal Quality Care Collaborative (“CMQCC”). 

DHCS Innovation Award Submission 

GCHP Quality Improvement (“QI”) staff submitted a DHCS Innovation Award proposal titled 

“Using a cascade-of-care model to integrate member and provider interventions focused on 

improving asthma management across a continuum of care” as part of DHCS’ Call for 2021 

Innovation and Health Equity Award Nominations.  

The program focused on members 19-51 years of age identified with inappropriate utilization 

of asthma medications. Understanding the challenges with improving the Asthma Medication 

Ratio (“AMR”) rate, the demographics and characteristics of the target population, and the 

need to develop an innovative approach that integrated both provider and member 
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engagement, a cascade-of-care approach was applied that utilized successive health plan 

and clinic-led interventions to promote the same message across a continuum of care. The 

interventions included (1) health plan led telephonic outreach; (2) health plan/clinic outreach 

partnerships with contracted providers; and (3) development of the asthma member incentive 

program. The health plan’s program included telephonic outreach by Health Navigators to 

(1) promote the importance of routine asthma exams with a PCP; (2) maintain a current 

asthma action plan; (3) take asthma medication as prescribed by the PCP; (4) assess barriers 

to asthma management; and (5) assess the need for asthma education.  A post-intervention 

analysis showed the AMR rates for the two outreach groups increased 3.65% and 4.85%, 

respectively.  Follow-up calls indicated that 72% of the members contacted confirmed they 

had scheduled an asthma exam with their PCP. Four Ventura County Medical Center 

(“VCMC”) clinics participated in a pilot project, with each clinic receiving GCHP-developed 

outreach tools and the asthma incentive forms to contact members, promote the incentive 

program, and schedule office or telehealth appointments. Based on completed outreach, 

asthma exams were scheduled for 70% of the members contacted.  The clinics also reported 

that the member incentive program requirements alerted providers to complete all three 

components during the clinic visit and engaged members to complete the appointment.   

 

DHCS will announce award recipients during the DHCS Quality Conference on Wednesday, 

October 27, 2021. 

 

Behavioral Health Update 

The Behavioral Health and Social Programs department has supported several key 

behavioral health initiatives in the past quarter, including the Proposition 56 Behavioral 

Health Integration Incentive Program (“BHIIP”), the Children and Youth Behavioral Health 

Initiative’s Student Behavioral Health Incentive Program (“SBHIP”) and the California 

Advancing and Innovating Medi-Cal (“CalAIM”) Behavioral Health Initiative. Efforts and 

accomplishments include participation in DHCS workgroups to shape implementation of the 

various programs, hosting a second BHIIP provider convening and strengthening provider 

monitoring and oversight mechanisms, strengthening partnerships with Ventura County 

Behavioral Health and participating on the clinical advisory council for Adverse Childhood 

Experiences (“ACEs”) Aware Ventura County to promote ACEs screening among provider 

systems. The Behavioral Health department also supports CalAIM Enhanced Care 

Management planning to ensure the needs of Ventura County’s members living with Serious 

Mental Illness and Substance Use Disorders are adequately and appropriately addressed. 
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Utilization Update 

 

COVID-19 Update 

 

GCHP staff are detecting decreased COVID-19 admissions through the last week of 

September 2021.  As of October 11, 2022, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 

(“CDC”) downgraded the level of transmission in Ventura County from High to Substantial.  

Compared with the prior week, COVID-19 hospital admissions have decreased by about 31% 

and there has been no change in the number of ICU beds days being used in the county. 

 

 
 

 

Inpatient and Outpatient Service Requests 

Inpatient service requests for Q3 CY2021 are only slightly increased compared to Q3 CY 

2020 (1.87% increase). 
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Outpatient service requests for Q3 CY2021 are also mirroring Q3 CY 2020 volumes. 
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Administrative Day Trends 

Compared with the first nine months of CY2020, administrative days through September 

2021 decreased by nearly 14%.   

 

 

 

Pharmacy Hot Topics 
 
Medi-Cal Rx 
 
DHCS informed plans in late July that the new implementation date for Medi-Cal Rx will be 
January 1, 2022. Upon implementation, all retail prescription claims will be submitted directly 
to the state via its PBM, Magellan. GCHP will continue to work with advocacy groups, other 
MCPs, DHCS and its PBM in order to facilitate the implementation of the carve out and will 
continue to bring information as it becomes available to this group.  
 
The DHCS dedicated website for Medi-Cal Rx is live and contains announcements, news, 
and secure portal training/registration. GCHP encourages all of its providers to: 

1. Visit the portal 
2. Sign up for the email subscription service 
3. Register for the secure portal and training 

 
The following table lists the planned member communication from both DHCS and GCHP for 
the upcoming transition: 
 
 
 

Page 175 of 189 Return to Agenda



 

Date Topic Responsibility 

November 2021 60-Day Notice Letter DHCS 

November-December 2021 Outreach Campaign in 
Radio and Print Media 

GCHP 

December 2021 30-Day Notice Letter GCHP 

By January 1, 2022 New ID Cards GCHP 

 
DHCS’s Dedicated Medi-Cal RX Website: 
https://medi-calrx.dhcs.ca.gov/home/ 
 
 
Pharmacy Benefit Cost Trends 
 
Gold Coast Health Plan’s (GCHP) pharmacy trend shows an 3% increase year over year for 
September 2021. When looking at the per member per month costs (“PMPM”), the PMPM 
has decreased approximately 13.8% since its peak in March 2020. Pharmacy trend is 
impacted by unit cost increases, utilization, and the drug mix. Pharmacy costs were predicted 
to experience double digit increases (>10%) each year from now until 2025. The impact of 
COVID-19 and the benefit changes to allow up to a 90-day supply of maintenance 
medications have created a 3 month cyclic trend of higher expenditures in one month and 
lower in the following two months as noticed from December 2020 through July with peaks 
in December, March and June. This cyclic trend is expected to continue as long as there are 
significant fills of 90 day supply medications. 
 
GCHP Annual Trend Data 
 
Utilization Trends: 
 
Through March 2020, GCHP’s utilization was increasing as demonstrated by the number of 
members using prescriptions and the number of prescriptions each member is using while 
GCHP’s total membership continued to decline. However, the impact of COVID-19 has 
caused an increase in membership and the utilization of extended day supplies which 
suppress the view of increased utilization. The graph showing prescriptions per utilizer gives 
a new view of the increased utilization. GCHP will be continuously monitoring the impact of 
COVID-19 and the increased membership. 
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Pharmacy Monthly Cost Trends:  
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 *Claim totals prior to June 2017 are adjusted to reflect net claims. 
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Pharmacy Opioid Utilization 
 
GCHP continues to monitor the opioid utilization of its members and below are graphs 
showing some general stats that are often used to track and compare utilization. In general, 
GCHP continues to see a positive trend toward less prescriptions and lower doses of opioids 
for the membership. 
 

 

 
 
Definitions and Notes: 
High Dose Utilizers: utilizers using greater than 90 mg MEDD 
High Utilizers: utilizers filling greater than 3 prescriptions in 120 days 
Prescribers are identified by unique NPIs and not office locations. 
 
News Regarding Opioid Use in GCHP Members 
 
In late May 2021, twenty-nine pain management clinics throughout California closed abruptly. 
These included several clinics in Ventura County that were utilized by many GCHP members. 
In some cases, members received a final 30-day prescription of medication. However, the 
members were left without referrals to new pain management specialists. GCHP worked 
quickly to notice all providers regarding the abrupt closure and to direct members to contact 
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their primary care providers for treatment and referrals to new providers. Below are several 
additional actions taken by GCHP: 

• Provider notice regarding the closure and referral options 

• Member outreach for members utilizing buprenorphine to urgently connect members 
to new providers 

• Provider system panel discussion during Quality Improvement Collaboration meeting 

• Provision of California Department of Public Health (“CDPH”) provider notice with 
additional resources and support to GCHP provider network (attached) 

• Exploration of options for network expansion to address pain management provider 
shortage 

 
Abbreviation Key: 
PMPM: Per member per month 
PUPM: Per utilizer per month 
GDR: Generic dispensing rate 
COHS: County Organized Health System 
KPI: Key Performance indicators 
RxPMPM: Prescriptions per member per month 
 
Pharmacy utilization data is compiled from multiple sources including the pharmacy benefits 
manager (“PBM”) monthly reports, GCHP’s administrative services organization (“ASO”) 
operational membership counts, and invoice data. The data shown is through the end of 
September 2021. The data has been pulled during the first two weeks of October which 
increases the likelihood of adjustments. Minor changes, of up to 10% of the script counts, 
may occur to the data going forward due to the potential of claim reversals, claim adjustments 
from audits, and/or member reimbursement requests. 
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 State of California—Health and Human Services Agency 
California Department of Public Health   

  
 
 TOMÁS J. ARAGÓN, MD, DrPH 
Director and State Public Health Officer 

 
 
 

 
GAVIN NEWSOM 

Governor 

 
 

September 7, 2021 
 
Dear Provider, 
 
Health care providers continue to be essential partners in addressing the opioid 
epidemic in California. Working together, we want to ensure that providers have 
access to resources and support to help improve patient pain management. 
 
Alert: The abrupt closure of 29 California pain management centers in May 2021 
resulted in over 20,000 patients without referrals, medical records, or treatment 
plans, and created potentially dangerous disruptions in care for patients 
receiving treatment with opioids therapy. This was a striking example of a 
common problem: many patients with long-term opioid use find themselves 
suddenly stranded, without a doctor, whether due to clinician retirement, state 
or federal action, or other cause. 
 
Action: Given the national shortage in pain management providers, we 
anticipate many patients dependent on opioids may have difficulty finding a 
new pain management provider. Subsequently, primary care providers may 
inherit these patients. 
 
On behalf of the Statewide Overdose Safety (SOS) Workgroup and partners, 
please consider these best practices: 

• Continue opioid therapy for patients in transition. 
• Develop a patient-centered, individualized care plan. 
• Use caution when tapering opioid therapy. 
• Document patient care decisions. 
• Prescribe buprenorphine when appropriate. 

 
 

 
Continue Opioid Therapy for Patients in Transition: Following clinical guidelines for 
safe opioid prescribing, providers are encouraged to consider providing opioids 
to patients during transitions to avoid dangerous disruptions in care. While many 
providers may not have chosen to start opioids for a given chronic pain 
condition, stopping opioid therapy is different due to the physiological changes 
brought on by long-term opioid therapy. Stopping opioid therapy has been 

CDPH Substance and Addiction Prevention Branch, MS 8701, P.O. Box 997377, 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7377 

(916) 449-5211 
California Department of Public Health 
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shown to increase illicit opioid use, emergency medical care utilization, mental 
health crises, medically-attended overdose events, and death from overdose 
and suicide. It may be necessary and medically appropriate to continue opioid 
therapy, particularly if a patient will have a prolonged wait to see a pain 
management specialist. Whenever possible, discuss the patient’s history with 
their former provider, complete baseline assessments of pain, review 
expectations for opioid prescribing, and start discussing treatment for opioid use 
disorder (OUD) if appropriate. If you are unable to treat the patient, provide a 
warm hand-off to another provider to avoid the experience or perception of 
abandonment. 
 
Develop a Patient-Centered, Individualized Care Plan: Develop an 
individualized plan in collaboration with the patient for continuing opioid 
therapy, tapering down or off of opioid therapy, or transitioning to 
buprenorphine. Engage the patient and include discussions around social issues 
and support, mental health services, alternative pain management strategies, 
and overdose risk. Consider the patient’s perceived risks and benefits of opioid 
therapy. 
 
Use Caution when Tapering Opioid Therapy: Providers should not abruptly 
discontinue or rapidly taper opioids in a patient who is physically dependent on 
opioid therapies. Safe tapers may take months to years to accomplish. Ensure 
patients understand the risks and benefits of dose maintenance versus dose 
tapering. Work with the patient to identify which medications to taper and how 
fast. 
 
Document Patient Care Decisions: The majority of investigations of providers 
around opioid prescribing that have resulted in a complaint or disciplinary 
action against a license contained violations of insufficient documentation. 
Document the rationale for continuing or modifying a patient’s opioid therapy. 
Include descriptions of pain conditions, previous and current therapy, 
assessment of risk and evidence of OUD, and opioid stewardship measures. 
Comprehensive documentation benefits both the patient and the provider. 
 
Prescribe Buprenorphine when Appropriate: Buprenorphine has been shown to 
be a highly safe and effective treatment for pain management and OUD, and is 
FDA-approved for both conditions. Buprenorphine reduces craving, withdrawal, 
and overdose risk, has low potential for misuse and diversion, and increases 
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retention in care. Buprenorphine for pain has proven to be an effective and safe 
alternative for patients dependent on long-term opioid agonists. Buprenorphine 
for OUD can be prescribed by any provider with an X number (X-waiver), in-
person or via telehealth, to new and existing patients with OUD. As of April 28, 
2021, providers may now request an X-waiver to treat up to 30 patients with 
buprenorphine without having to complete training or to certify that they can 
provide counseling or other ancillary services. To prescribe buprenorphine to 
more than 30 patients, however, training and meeting certain conditions are 
required. Sign-up for an X-waiver. Note: Prescribing buprenorphine for pain does 
not require an X-waiver. 
 
Support and Resources: The Center for Innovation in Academic Detailing on 
Opioids (CIAO) of the San Francisco Department of Public Health, in 
collaboration with the California Department of Public Health recorded a 
webinar in June 2021 to support providers inheriting patients on opioids. The 
presentation focuses on sharing information and clinical tools about inheriting 
patients on opioid therapy, ensuring continuity of care, and utilizing 
buprenorphine: A Webinar for Providers: What Do I Do With Inherited Patients on 
Opioids? 
 
The National Clinician Consultation Center offers free guidance and support to 
providers treating patients with OUD through these telephone services: 

1. California Substance Use Line: (844) 326-2626. Clinically-supported advice 
on substance use management for health care providers, staffed 24/7 in 
collaboration with addiction experts at the University of California, San 
Francisco Clinicians Consultation Center and California Poison Control. 

2. Substance Use Warmline: (855) 300-3595. Confidential clinician-to-clinician 
telephone consultation from addiction medicine-certified physicians, 
clinical pharmacists, and nurses with special expertise in 
pharmacotherapy options for opioid use, available Monday through 
Friday, between 6 a.m. and 5 p.m. PST. Voicemail is available 24/7.  
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Thank you for continuing to provide quality medical care to your patients. 

Sincerely, 

Tomás J. Aragón, MD, DrPH 
Director and State Public Health Officer 
California Department of Public Health 

Kimberly Kirchmeyer 
Director 
Department of Consumer Affairs 

William Prasifka, 
Executive Director 
Medical Board of California 

Michelle Baass 
Director 
California Department of Health Care Services 
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AGENDA ITEM NO. 11 

TO: Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission 

FROM: Ted Bagley, Chief Diversity Officer 

DATE: October 25, 2021 

SUBJECT:  Chief Diversity Officer (CDO) Report 

Actions: 

1. Community Relations

• Attended the County Health Equity Advisory Committee meeting. Completed group

charter. Working on position descriptions within the group.

• Met with a diverse group of citizens in Simi Valley to address pending issues within

the county such as Police Reform, Anti-Racism training and selection process.

• Visited the Free Clinic in Simi Valley where they provide free Medical/Counselling,

legal and dental care to those not having insurance or medical resources. Housed

in the same facility are two organizations, Big Brother Big sister, and Soaring

Spirits. Though most are familiar with Big Brothers Big Sisters, Soaring Spirits

International provides resources and tools for the widowed community. It offers

both virtual and in person programs aimed to help those coping with the loss of a

spouse or partner rebuilding their lives. They have served 4,000,000 widowed

individuals in the U.S. and globally.

2. Case Investigations

No new cases submitted during the month of September/October.

3. Diversity Activities

• The Diversity, Equity and Inclusion team has been challenged to look at our plan’s

values. It was determined by the group that because of the changing landscape,

the pandemic and new cultural norms - change may be needed.
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• We have some difficulty in identifying players who will be significant contributors to

a proposed summit which, because of the pandemic, will be pushed to the first

quarter 2022. The delay in identifying participants and the approaching holidays

make the change in date necessary.

• Received five calls from employees with the following subject matter:

1. Lunch -N- Learn feedback (2)
2. Health Equity (1)
3. Career counselling (2)

• Continue to work with HR in structuring a strategy on return-to-work process.

• Wrote article for our newsletter in support of Hispanic Heritage Month. The subject

of the article was Henry L. Hank Lacayo, a pioneer in Hispanic emergence in

Ventura County.

• Invited Commissioners Laura Espinosa and Board of Supervisor and

Commissioner Carmen Ramirez to be speakers at our Lunch-n-Learn celebrating

Hispanic Heritage Month scheduled for October 15, 2021.
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AGENDA ITEM NO. 12  

TO: Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission 

FROM: Michael Murguia, Executive Director of Human Resources 

DATE: October 25, 2021 

SUBJECT: Executive Director of Human Resources (H.R.) Report 

Human Resources Activities 

Recruited our Chief Information Officer Alan Torres with a start date of October 18, 2021.  
Working very closely with Alan on his onboarding process with an organizational overview, 
assigned Executive Assistant and other activities. On his first day our COO and myself hosted 
a lunch after his orientation meeting.  We also organized an all-IT meeting on his first day where 
Alan introduced himself to his organization.  His direct reports joined the meeting in person to 
meet Alan and discuss high priorities in IT.  Alan was able to tour building 770 and see his new 
office location.  We continue to plan our virtual Benefits Fair scheduled for November 3 and 4, 
2021.  We did this event very successfully last year and we hope to replicate that success this 
year. Lastly, we are also working on a Holiday Drive thru event much like our 10-year 
anniversary drive thru event earlier this year.  This event will be hosted by our Employee 
Activities Committee and Executive Staff in early December. 

Attrition and Case Update 

We have had one voluntary resignation over the last 30 days and no new cases. 

Facilities / Office Updates 

GCHP Facilities’ team is dedicated to planning a return to the office when conditions allow. The 
team continues to meet and evaluate: 

• Protocols for the flow of employees who visit the office for supplies, printing, and other
business-related activities

• Protocols for our new entrance and exit process requiring temperature checks and
registration in our Proxy click system is working very well

• Protocols for a return to the office, including taking temperatures

• Making any necessary modifications to improve air quality inside the buildings
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